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Connecting People Changing Lives Celebrating 10 Years

Introduction
Spraoi agus Spórt provides affordable and inclusive opportunities, 
activities and experiences aligned to our community’s needs, in a fun, 
friendly environment. 

We are here because we believe everyone deserves to have the same 
opportunities irrespective of ability, income, or social circumstance.

We innovate constantly to meet these needs and beliefs.

Vision
To create a successful and sustainable social enterprise 
that enhances the local community and encourages other 
communities to adopt the same best practices.

Mission
To provide affordable and inclusive opportunities, activities and 
experiences that are aligned to the needs of the community.

Purpose
To give everyone the same opportunities.
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“Never doubt that 
a small group of 
thoughtful, committed 
citizens can change 
the world. Indeed, it is 
the only thing that ever 
has.” 
Margaret Mead

Celebrating 10 years 
of Social Enterprise in Inishowen

Carndonagh in 2010

Picture this… community services had little to offer 
parents with young children who wanted to come 
together. The only community activity was a parent 
and toddler group in the Council Offices, which met 
just once a week. Toys were kept in a disused toilet, 
and parents couldn’t make a cup of tea. 

A group of parents who wanted more got together. 
We wanted a suitable space to meet more than 
once a week, where we could also chat over tea and 
biscuits. So began the journey for Spraoi agus Spórt, 
formed initially as a community group. That same 
year, we renovated Unit 7 of the SuperValu Shopping 
Centre in Carndonagh to create the space we needed. 

November 2010

Spraoi agus Spórt began to meet on 
Tuesdays and Thursdays for Parent and 
Toddler groups and on Wednesdays 
for Active Play. From Unit 7, Spraoi 
agus Spórt grew and we expanded our 
activities to include music and arts. In 
the first year, we set up the “Something 
Special Social Club” to provide activities 
for children with disabilities or more 
complex needs. 

July 2012

In our first summer, Spraoi ran 3 weeks 
of summer camps as an alternative 
to sports camps. By July 2012, we 
expanded this to eight weeks and 
included extra weeks at Easter and 
Halloween. 

YEARSRREY
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2014 

Spraoi created a community sensory room with funding from GENIO and the 
International Charity Bazaar. It was part of a growing range of dedicated activities 
and respite for families with children with a disability. These services cover a range of 
disabilities from learning to physical, sensory disability, and the autism spectrum. Under 
a project called ‘Time for Us’, we could now cater for families who had never received 
respite before. We continue working hard to sustain these services so children with a 
disability can live active and included lives. Income from fundraisers and our charity 
shop Fadó support these services, and we constantly seek feedback to improve them. 
We encourage families to engage and explore what may enhance their quality of life 
and well-being. In 2020, we gave the sensory room a major renovation and look forward 
to welcoming children and their families back. 

Also, in 2014 we introduced activities aimed 
at improving the health and wellbeing of 
adults and young people in Inishowen. The 
Couch to 5k training programme in 5 towns 
across the peninsula encouraged them 
to get fit and healthy. Physical training 
was led by experienced coaches and we 
held a fun run, and nutritional and injury 
prevention workshops. We also offered 
activity classes for pre-school children to 
coincide with morning training. The effect 
of this programme can be seen still. Groups 
of runners out twice a week in all weathers. 
Groups of people who began with a 5k fun 
run now running races and marathons 
across the world. 

2015

In another major milestone, we appointed our first full time 
manager in 2015, under the Pobal Community Service Programme. 
Tracy Doyle initially joined Spraoi agus Spórt in 2012 under the Tús 
scheme and continues to work with us now. She is one of 15 staff 
in full and part time roles in Spraoi, as well as almost 60 course 
facilitators. This makes us a major employer in Inishowen.

Spraoi grew from strength to strength as activities continuously 
expanded. With this came recognition for the quality of our  
work, beginning with the Coca Cola Thank You Fund in 2014.  
Since then, we secured the Better Together Awards – People’s 
Choice Award; The Ireland Funds, Donegal Volunteer Awards;  
Age and Opportunity and the Families First Award. We  
were particularly delighted to win the Charity Impact  
Awards – Social Enterprise of the Year in 2018 and 2019.  
We were shortlisted for it also in 2020. 

2018

We secured Dormant Accounts funding in 2018 which 
enabled us to open our digital fabrication lab – FabLab 
Inishowen. This was a major innovation for Inishowen, 
with its 3D printers, laser cutters and vinyl cutters. It 
was also a demonstration of the commitment of Spraoi 
to STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts, 
Maths) activities. In previous years we held IT camps 
and coding lessons. FabLab Inishowen has brought the 
machines and the knowledge of digital fabrication to the 
community. Through the EU Peace IV Programme, 150 
young people came to the FabLab or FabLab equipment 
went to their school. Donegal County Council funding 
also allowed local creative entrepreneurs explore how 
digital fabrication could add value to their businesses. 

In 2019 we created a co-working space in the former 
Action Inishowen building in Carndonagh. It’s part of 
a Europe wide consortium of rural co-working spaces 
called Co-Work Plus. This was a huge boost in our work 
to support adults and enterprise in the community. It 
also supports remote working with quality office space 
and wi-fi services. 

The Couch to 5k  
made a huge positive 
impact on people’s lives  
through forging healthy  
habits and fitness 
friendships.

8
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2020

In our tenth year, our community support was needed more than ever as the world 
faced the global pandemic Covid-19. Spraoi’s response to lockdown showed how well we 
understood our community’s needs and how quickly we could react to them. In March, 
with little warning, all face-to-face services stopped, and staff worked from home. We 
created and co-ordinated a new project – Cineál - in collaboration with other groups in 
the community. Project Cineál delivered practical support and alternative arrangements 
to offer essential services under Covid restrictions. 

The first months of the project resulted in: 

A helpline providing 
contact and practical 

assistance

898 calls

Establishing a Food  
Bank providing  

healthy food parcels

201 Food Parcels 
Distributed

Producing PPE using our  
digital fabrication lab

1,000 visors

Delivering online 
classes for children 
and young people.

226 
participants

Anxiety workshops and 1:1 
counselling provided to

38 children & 
young people

Alternative respite for 
children and teenagers with 
a disability and/or autism.

2,257 hours
Spraoi proudly celebrated our 10th anniversary in November 2020, although we could not 
all celebrate together: 10 years of providing affordable inclusive opportunities, activities 
and experiences for our community in a fun and friendly environment. 

In 2020, we now occupy nine buildings in Carndonagh that would otherwise be vacant. With 
each new building renovation, we use local trades people and buy from local suppliers. We 
raise money from national funding programmes, and we spend and invest in Inishowen. 

Our work has grown across five key areas; young families, children, young people, adults 
and enterprise. We exist because we believe that everyone deserves to have the same 
opportunities irrespective of ability, income, or social circumstance. We continue to grow 
and to respond to what our community needs. We are proud of the results we have 
secured for our community and that recognition of our work continues to grow. We look 
forward to the next 10 years of serving the Inishowen community. 

10 Years in Pictures 
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Foreword (Chairperson)

Spraoi agus Spórt is a multi-award-winning 
social enterprise. Our purpose is to ensure 
that everyone has the same opportunity, 
regardless of ability, income, location or 
social circumstance. We have grown year 
on year with our focus always on children, 
young people, families and the community 
and endeavour, when possible, to offer 
what’s needed, to adapt what we deliver 
when needed, to continue to connect people 
and have a positive impact on people’s lives.

In the year 2020, we undoubtedly faced 
our biggest challenge when the Covid-19 
lockdown closed all our face-to-face 
services. Overnight we had to stop our 60 
weekly activities which supported over 700 
participants many who were vulnerable 
children and teenagers. Our charity shop 
closed, and all our traded and fundraised 
income stopped.

Our staff were very concerned about their 
jobs, we had 15 full and part-time positions, 
initially all staff worked from home, with 
many having to manage childcare and home 
schooling alongside their role in Spraoi. From 
the outset we reassured staff that we would 
do everything in our power to keep their jobs 
safe and I am delighted to say that no staff 
member lost their job during this time. 

It is a testament to our board, staff, and 
volunteers that Spraoi pivoted our entire 
business model within a week of this closure. 
Together, we are proud we could so quickly 
adapt and respond to meet the ‘new normal’ 
needs of our community.

We not only put our classes online, we also 
created online programmes, clubs, and 
shopping services. We stepped into the 
community – with masks on! - and partnered 
with others under our Project Cineál. This 
project provided essential services like 
shopping and prescription deliveries, family 
visits and a Food Bank. However, stepping 
up had its challenges. Staff had to adjust to 
new roles and responsibilities. We had to 
reconfigure layouts in our premises to ensure 
we adhered to covid guidelines and numbers 
attending classes were much smaller than 
usual. Yet, our costs remained the same. 
Many of our volunteers are older and were 
cocooning so we struggled to have sufficient 
staff cover in our shop when it reopened. We 
had to cancel our usual fundraisers.

However, everyone rose to the challenge and 
as a result we have become a more resilient 
and stronger social enterprise. 

It has been challenging for all - but there 
were highs too. The highlight of 2020 was 
our 10th anniversary, although Covid-19 
meant we could not hold the planned 
celebration activities. We took time instead, 

to reflect on our work and its impact over 
the last ten years. We’re so proud that this 
tremendously positive impact was reflected 
in a June 2020 review and report by Trinity 
MBA students. We were delighted to have 
had the opportunity to work with Trinity 
on this project and it was certainly one of 
the positives from Covid as Trinity students 
usually work with a social enterprise within 
the greater Dublin region.

Our board and staff team embarked on an 
exciting branding journey over a number of 
months in 2020 and we are delighted with 
our new logo and tagline – “Connecting 
People, Changing Lives”. We have spent 
the last ten years connecting people and 
changing lives and our new vibrant logo and 
brand identity really reflects this. 

Even though we loved our old logo, we felt 
we had outgrown it, the family depicted in 
the rainbow logo was representative of us 
when our activities centred mainly on young 
families and children. The rainbow logo was 
designed by Matthew Byrne and Gráinne 
Byrne and it will always hold a special place 
in our hearts.

However, Spraoi has grown so much over the 
last 10 years and now works across five key 

areas, so we felt we needed a logo to reflect 
this expanded work. Evelyn Cagney listened 
carefully to our story and brief and we believe 
she captured it perfectly with our new logo. 
It was an S made in five separate pieces and 
colours with each piece representing one 
of our key areas – young families, children, 
young people, adults and enterprise.

This is the first year we have created an 
annual report. I would like to thank Carlene 
Lyttle Sailespin for her help with content 
creation, Trish Hegarty Inis Communications 
for ensuring our story flows seamlessly from 
beginning to end and to the team at Allen 
Creative for presenting it in such a wonderful 
format.

I am delighted to present this report to you, 
our service users, our funders, our network, 
and our community, on the activities of Spraoi 
for the year ending 31 December 2020.

Chairperson,  

Patricia Lee 
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In 2020, Spraoi agus Spórt celebrated 10 
years of delivering meaningful social impact 
within our community. Our impact centred 
on improving mental health, ensuring social 
inclusion and rural regeneration. We are 
immensely proud of what we have achieved 
together, particularly in the face of great 
adversity – namely Covid-19. 

My approach to this year’s challenges 
was to be collaborative, innovative and to 
continue the economic sustainability of 
our services. This allowed us to adapt and 
respond to the Covid crisis and the profound 
ways it changed our lives. It also allowed us 
to strengthen and grow, knowing we would 
always meet challenges head-on to address 
our community’s needs. 

Spraoi’s main response to the Covid crisis was 
to create Project Cineál (which means ‘kind’). 
Alongside other community groups, S&S staff 
provided the operational structure for Project 
Cineál to address specific, urgent local needs. 

• We set up a Helpline from 7am-7pm 
Monday to Sunday to pick up and 
deliver grocery and prescription orders for 
vulnerable and older people. 

• We made visors in our FabLab for 
Community care homes and businesses

• We joined forces with others to set up the 
Inishowen Food Bank across the peninsula. 
Our partners were The Inishowen 
Development Partnership, The Exchange 
Buncrana, The Irish Red Cross Muff, Trinity 
Court Newtowncunningham, Moville GAA 
and Moville Family Resource Centre.

• We brought our classes online using zoom. 

• We set up an online Book Club called 
“Chapter and Virus.”

• We provided one-to-one alternative respite 
sessions to support children and teenagers 
with a disability and/or autism and their 
families.

• We distributed over 500 care packs for 
older people on behalf of Donegal County 
Council.

• We delivered 1:1 counselling and anxiety 
management workshops for children and 
young people.

This innovation made a big difference to 
the lives of people in Inishowen, when they 
needed it. 

Covid-19 was a significant catalyst for the 
digitisation of services at Spraoi. We moved 
services online, started selling FabLab 
products online, and held online raffles. We 
adapted quickly to maintain connections 
with users and develop alternative ways to 
raise funds for our vital services. 

We had to adapt because lockdown resulted 
in a significant reduction in revenue. The 
centre closed and many ‘paid for’ classes 
and activities ended. The main fundraising 
stream - the charity shop Fadó - closed 

Foreword (CEO & Co-founder)

CEO and Co-Founder, Helen Nolan

twice over 2020. Fundraising events such 
as a golf classic, a coffee morning and an 
annual 5k walk/run, were cancelled. So 
Spraoi partnered with Dublin-based start-up 
Thriftify to launch an online version of the 
Fadó charity shop. The outcome was to bring 
hundreds of donated items to a wider Irish 
market, unlocking the fundraising potential 
of e-commerce. 

2020 was also a year for accolades. Spraoi 
have always achieved awards each year 
and 2020 was no different. It started in 
January with an award from the Social 
Enterprise Development Fund. 

We were finalists for the third time in a row 
for the Wheel’s Social Enterprise of the Year. 
In November, we won Pride of Place in the 
Community Wellbeing Initiative category.

Our past 10 years of work were recognised on 
a National Scale. We were invited to a special 
reception at Áras an Uachtaráin to celebrate 
the 20th birthday of The Wheel. I was asked 
to speak at the National Social Enterprise 
Conference 2020 on the theme of Shaping a 
Sustainable, Inclusive Recovery. We secured 
national RTE coverage for our work with the 
Inishowen Food Bank, as part of “The Ireland 
on Call” series. 

Of course, we could not have achieved all 
this without support and funding. Rethink 
Ireland’s Social Enterprise Development 
Fund, Pobal’s Stability Fund, supports from 
Donegal County Council, LEADER and other 
funding ensured that we were able to meet 
our community’s needs this year.

I was selected for the 2020-21 EMPOWER 
Growth programme for women in enterprise 
in Spring 2020. This boosted my ability to 
deliver on financial sustainability for Spraoi 
as a social enterprise. I was delighted to take 
part in the Restart Communities in Action 
with LYIT. 

Despite the challenges faced throughout the 
year, we’re so proud of our response, and 
look forward to 2021. As Margaret Mead 
once said “Never doubt that a small group of 
thoughtful, committed citizens can change 
the world; indeed, it’s the only thing that ever 
has.

Chief Executive and Co-Founder,  

Helen Nolan

https://prideofplace.ie/portfolio-item/category-seven-community-wellbeing-initiative-2020/
https://prideofplace.ie/portfolio-item/category-seven-community-wellbeing-initiative-2020/
https://rethinkireland.ie/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/SIFI070_SED_fund_summary_A4_RETHINK_web-1.pdf
https://rethinkireland.ie/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/SIFI070_SED_fund_summary_A4_RETHINK_web-1.pdf
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Spraoi agus Spórt is a multi-award-winning social enterprise based 
in Carndonagh, Inishowen, Co. Donegal. We provide affordable and 
inclusive opportunities, activities and experiences that are aligned to  
the needs of our community in a fun and friendly environment.

Who We Are  
and What We Do

• We work across five key areas: young 
families, children, young people, adults, 
and enterprise.

• We exist because we believe that everyone 
deserves to have the same opportunities 
irrespective of ability, income, or social 
circumstance.

• We find that when people come to us, they 
are often frustrated because they can’t 
access the services that they need. We 
listen to them and respond by delivering 
services that meet their needs.

• We know that when people feel part 
of something, they feel supported and 
connected, they grow in confidence and 
they feel happier.

• We are focused on building a sustainable 
model, one that can be embraced by other 
communities, as supporting each other is 
at the core of what we do.

• The result of our work is improved mental 
health, social inclusion and positive 
economic benefit to the local area, which 
ultimately leads to a stronger community.

Young Families
Parent & Toddler 

Breastfeeding Support 

Mothers Together Group

Baby yoga, baby massage and music  
and song for babies and toddlers 

Community Food Bank  
Counselling Rooms

Children
Breakfast & After-School Club

School of Music, creative writing,  
dance, birthday parties

Holiday camps - arts and crafts, 
multi activity camp, surfing,  
technology

Young People
Alternative Respite for teenagers  
with disability and/or autism 
Counselling Rooms, Holiday camps,
Anxiety workshops, FabLab

Adults
Couch to 5k, Operation Transformation, 
Yoga, Dress making, Flower arranging 
Counselling Rooms

Enterprise
Fadó - charity shop 
FabLab Inishowen 
Co- Working Hub

Siopa Spraoi

Spraoi agus Spórt 
Background
In 2010, one of the only community activities 
in Carndonagh was a parent and toddler 
group in the Council Offices. It met just once 
a week, and parents couldn’t make a cup 
of tea. So, in April 2010, friends and mums of 
young children Helen Nolan, Louise Grant, 
Ailbhe Hickey, Helen Doherty and Kathleen 
Gallagher agreed to look for something 
better. We wanted a dedicated home for the 
group “where parents could have tea and a 
chat while our children played”. 

After seven months of hard work, 
commitment, and dedication the dream 
became a reality. Spraoi agus Spórt opened 
its doors for the first time on Thursday 
17th November 2010. Later that year Sarah 
Quigley Burns, Lorraine O’Carroll, and Karen 
McCormick joined the committee.

In May 2011 with the help of Cathy Kelly & 
Chrissy McCandless the “Something Special 
Social Club” was established. It aimed to 
provide activities for children with disabilities 
or more complex needs. It also aimed to offer 
respite to their families. 

Key Gains
Spraoi agus Spórt has grown and developed 
steadily and innovatively over the years. 
This has been the result of these key 
elements: the hard work of our committee 
and staff, the support of the families who 
use our centre; support and funding from 
the local community, businesses and other 
organisations; and of course funding from 
key local and national agencies. Here’s a 
summary of some of our major milestones:

• In 2010, we offered 3 activities per week, 
for 15 families and 20 children. Before 
lockdown in 2020, around 700 people 
attended over 60 different weekly classes 
and activities at Spraoi. 

• Parenting supports have expanded from 
the Parent and Toddler Group to include 
Breastfeeding Support, Mothers Together, 
Pregnancy Yoga and Baby Massage. 

• From our original space in Unit 7 at the 
SuperValu Shopping Centre, we now 
occupy 9 buildings in Carndonagh. And we 
have ambitious plans to grow and expand 
further to meet our community’s present 
and future needs. 

• Awards we have received include the 
2020 Winner Pride of Place - Community 
Well-Being Initiative; 2019 & 2018 Winner 
Social Enterprise of the Year at the Charity 
Impact Awards and the 2019 Social 
Enterprise Development Fund with Rethink 
Ireland.

• We have secured funding from Pobal’s 
Community Services Programme, Dormant 
Accounts, Sports Capital Programme, 
Service Reform Fund and LEADER. Our 
most recent and biggest funding award 
to date was €9.5m for the Tús Nua 
regeneration project in partnership with 
Donegal County Council.

Co-Founders (l-r) Helen Nolan, Ailbhe Hickey, 
Louise Grant, Helen Doherty (missing from 
photo Kathleen Gallagher)
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How We are Run
We grow and develop by listening to our 
community and responding to their needs. 
As a social enterprise, we are a not-for-profit 
organisation, investing revenue and funding 
back into our community services. 

We are governed in a professional and 
voluntary capacity by a Board of Directors. 
We have a strong staff team across our five 
areas and we are supported by a strong pool 
of facilitators, special needs assistants and 
volunteers.  
STAFF TEAM

All board members, facilitators, staff, and 
volunteers are reference checked and Garda 
Vetted.  
BOARD MEMBERS

Spraoi and The SDGs
As a social enterprise, we are committed to our role in contributing 
towards achieving the UN Sustainable Development Goals by 2030.  
Our work directly contributes to the following SDGs:

SDGs in Focus 
Alternative Respite for Children and 
Teenagers with a disability and/or autism. 

The Issue
Living with a disability can be an 
isolating experience for people living in 
our communities. Adolescence is a critical 
developmental stage, characterised by 
sensitivity to social stimuli and the increased 
need for peer interaction. Disability services 
to meet the needs of children and youth 
are organised and delivered very differently 
across Ireland. This is because of the way 
services were introduced and developed over 
the years. Services may be excellent in one 
region, but lacking or non-existent for those 
living in another region. 

So, children and teenagers with a disability 
and/or autism may not have equal access to 
services and activities (SDG 10). Or their needs 
may not be met by the child and youth 

services and activities in their local area. This 
has negative impacts on their mental health 
and well-being (SDG 3) and life-long learning 
opportunities (SDG 4). 

Our Response 
We are based in an area which experiences 
high levels of social deprivation. So, we work 
to ensure that our activities have spaces 
reserved for those who need it most. We also 
aim to ensure that everyone has the same 
opportunity to take part. 

We provide Special Needs Assistant support 
so those with a disability and/or autism 
can take part in our activities. In 2011 with 
the support of GENIO, we established our 
Alternative Respite programme which 
provides tailored and individualised support 
for them. The child or teenager is supported 
to take part in activities of their choosing. This 
enables them to connect with their peers and 
feel part of our community. 

https://spraoiagussport.ie/about-us/staff/
https://spraoiagussport.ie/about-us/board-members/
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We provide over 2,000 hours of alternative 
respite annually. 

Outcomes 
Participants and their guardians report back 
to us on what they gain from our Alternative 
Respite programme. These gains include 
reduced social isolation and enhanced well-
being. They also benefit from the learning 
opportunities afforded by our broad range of 
child and youth activities.

The Kelly Family Story
Cathy Kelly has four children. In 2010, her 
third child, Lucy was diagnosed with cerebral 
palsy when she was a year old. When Spraoi 
opened that same year, Cathy’s cousin 
brought her own one-year-old along to the 
parent and toddler group. Cathy was a bit 
reluctant to follow, as Lucy’s needs were more 
complex than the rest of the group. 

So, she talked to Spraoi Chief Executive Helen 
Nolan, who suggested starting a group for 
children with special needs. Cathy phoned 
another friend whose daughter also has 
cerebral palsy, and who was delighted to 
hear about a local service. Before then, there 
was no such service in the area. Word soon 
got around and more people got involved. 

This new group was a great outlet for children 
like Lucy, their siblings, and an important 
support for their parents. The way activities 
were run made sure nobody was excluded. 
So, Lucy and her older brothers could all 
attend the groups and camps and go on the 
days out. The whole family became part of 
Spraoi. The boys made friends with other 
children who had disabilities or who had 
brothers or sisters with disabilities. Cathy met 
other parents of children with disabilities, 
whom she would never have met without 
Spraoi. All of these elements combined to 
show Cathy how Lucy, too, could have a full 

future. Sharing information and experiences, 
being involved in others’ lives, reduced the 
isolation Cathy was feeling. “It was nice to 
know you weren’t the only one going through 
it,” said Cathy.

Lucy is now 11 and is very sociable. According 
to Cathy, Lucy probably knows more people 
in Carndonagh now than she does! During 
lockdown in 2020, they hadn’t been out of 
the house for five months. Cathy said Lucy 
“definitely needed out of the house.” As soon 
as restrictions lifted in July, Spraoi provided 
respite services, which Lucy could attend for  
3 days a week. 

From her first encounter with Spraoi, we 
listened to what Cathy and her family needed 
and then we delivered it.

Our inclusive activities support young people’s 
needs at no extra cost to their families. We 
offer this service through the HSE Service 
Reform Fund, a HSE Section 39 Grant Aid 
Agreement, fundraising, our charity shop 
Fadó, and our social enterprise model of 
income creation. 

Thank You to Our Funders
The Board and Staff at Spraoi wish to extend a huge THANK YOU to all 
those who provide the funding support we need to run our services:

Pobal
Community Services 
Programme
Funding under the Community Services 
Programme plays a key role in the overall 
sustainability of Spraoi on an annual basis. 
This fund provides funding for a Manager 
and 3 FTE’s.

School Aged Childcare  
Scheme
Funding provided to families to access school 
aged childcare is critical in an area such as 
Carndonagh and North Inishowen. Spraoi 
have many children availing of their services 
under the Community Childcare Subvention 
Programme and the National Childcare 
Scheme.

Stability Fund 
This fund was developed to provide support 
to organisations who have seen their trading 
and/or fundraising income drop significantly 
during the crisis. This was very true for Spraoi 
as all our traded income and fundraised 
income stopped overnight. Funding from the 
stability fund was key to our ability to adapt 
and respond during the Covid-19 crisis.
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Donegal County 
Council
Peace IV SEUPB 
This project was part of Donegal County 
Council’s €5.5m Local Authority Action 
Plan and funded through the EU’s PEACE 
IV Programme, which is managed by the 
Special EU Programmes Body (SEUPB). 
Match –funding was provided by the 
Executive Office in Northern Ireland and 
the Department of Rural and Community 
Development in Ireland. 

Our “FabLab Inishowen” project was funded 
under Building Positive Relations. This 
project will give 240 young people access 
to creative technology through digital 
fabrication machines that include 3D printers, 
laser cutters, vinyl cutters, heat press and 
computer-based design. For most of the 
young people this will be the first time they 
have accessed digital fabrication technology.

Atlantic Economic Corridor
The Atlantic Economic Corridor (AEC) is 
an initiative which acts as an enabler 
for regional growth along the Western 
seaboard, from Donegal to Kerry, by 
combining the assets of the region to attract 
investment, support job creation and improve 
the quality of life for the people in the 
region. The counties covered by the AEC are 
Donegal, Leitrim, Sligo, Roscommon, Mayo, 
Galway, Clare, Limerick, and Kerry.

Funding received by Spraoi under this 
initiative enabled us to upgrade two rooms 
within our Coworking Hub.

Development Fund  
Initiative
Many thanks to our local councillors for 
supporting our upgrade works to our 
FabLab.

Creative Ireland Project
The creative resources of the FabLab 
were used for a shop local campaign that 
we pioneered in Carndonagh, with the 
Carndonagh Trader’s Association. Using 
the resources of the FabLab, funding from 
the Creative Ireland project and the design 
creativity of the participants we created 
a bespoke Christmas decoration that was 
given as a gift to people who shopped 
local. Participants also availed of a series 
of workshops in the FabLab to help create 
items that would help them within their own 
businesses.

Healthy Ireland
This fund is enabling Spraoi to deliver a 
number of resilience workshops for young 
people which will increase the proportion 
of people that are healthy at all stages of 
life, reduce health inequalities and help 
to create an environment where every 
individual and sector in society play their 
part in achieving a healthy Ireland.

Donegal County 
Childcare Committee
We value the ongoing support which we 
receive from Donegal County Childcare 
Committee. The annual funding for our 
Parent & Toddler Group means we can 
always bring new classes and invest in  
new toys and resources. 

Community 
Foundation of Ireland
Work continues with our Biodiversity Audit of 
Carndonagh in partnership with Inishowen 
Development Partnership and ECO Carn. This 
audit when complete will be a huge asset for 
this area and will map out what needs to be 
done locally to improve the biodiversity of our 
area.

Foras na Gaeilge
For almost 10 years we have delivered 
after-school events and summer camps 
through the Irish language which have been 
supported by Foras na Gaeilge under their 
Youth Events Scheme and Summer Camp 
Scheme. Our families love that their children 
have an opportunity locally to use the Irish 
language outside of the school setting.

We also availed of support under the 
Business Support Scheme.

Age & Opportunity
We were fortunate to receive funding from 
Age & Opportunity to deliver physical activity 
for older people.
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Donegal ETB
We had the support of Donegal ETB who 
provided funding for several evening adult 
education classes including interior design, 
dressmaking and flower arranging.

We were also supported by their youth 
club grant which is vital in ensuring we 
can continue to invest in new services and 
equipment for our young people.

North Inishowen 
School Completion
We work closely with our local schools to 
ensure that our range of activities can be 
accessed by everyone.

Department of 
Education
We provided group Summer Provision to over 
20 children and teenagers with a disability 
and/or autism. This provision provided 
critical support for 10 hours per week for 4 
weeks. It gave our children and teenagers 
an opportunity to engage in fun activities in 
a safe and secure environment and helped 
keep the routine of school.

HSE Service Reform 
Fund
Our two year “Alternative Respite” project 
ended in December 2020. Over the course of 
the two years 10 teenagers with a disability 
and/or autism availed of over 4,000 hours of 
daytime respite. This project was a lifeline for 
the teenagers who took part. It taught them 
many independent life skills and provided 
opportunities for them to take part in 
recreational activities of their choosing as the 
programme offered individualised support. 

Irish Youth 
Foundation and VHI
Funding was received at year end for 
an early intervention programme that 
aims to build and strengthen resilience in 
young people and help them recognise 
and manage anxiety. We are rolling this 
programme out through all secondary 
schools in 2021.

LEADER
LEADER funding during the year has enabled 
us to invest in facilities upgrades to ensure 
we can best protect our service users from 
Covid. We have installed ventilation units 
throughout our centre, and we have also 
invested in new equipment and resources 
and we look forward to delivering new and 
exciting workshops.

Rethink Ireland
Spraoi has flourished since becoming 
an awardee of the Social Enterprise 
Development Fund in 2019. Funding from 
Rethink Ireland enabled Spraoi to invest 
in resources which has been key to Spraoi 
receiving €9.5 million in partnership with 
Donegal County Council in April 2021. This 
funding will turn two derelict sites into a 
Coworking Hub, enhanced FabLab facilities, 
a youth space for teenagers, community 
kitchen, sensory garden, and a Creative 
Makers Hub. 

Thank You to  
Our Corporate  
Sponsors
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Spraoi would also like to extend 
our thanks to the following 
businesses and organisations for 
their generous donations: 

Brookfield Renewables, Buncrana Credit 
Union, AIB Carndonagh, Carndonagh 
Community School, Action Inishowen, 
Letterkenny Babies, Inishowen Methodist 
Church, People First.

Thanks to Patricia McCarron for organising 
the perfume draw in December. This raised 
€2,005 to support our alternative respite 
programme for children and teenagers with 
a disability and/or autism.

Thank you to everyone who purchased 
from our charity shop Fadó, from our online 
shops at Thriftify and Siopa Spraoi, thanks to 
everyone who donated goods and clothes to 
Fadó and to all those people who bought a 
ticket for our many raffles.

And finally, thanks to Ronan Campbell of 3D 
Issue, Letterkenny, for kindly converting this 
report into their fantastic ‘Experios’ format. 
We love the fantastic interactive digital 
magazine version!

Thank You to Our Network

Local National Remote Working Education 

Social Enterprise 
Partners

TRADERS 
A S S O C I A T I O N

CARNDONAGH 
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Spraoi was started in 2010 by a group of 
parents looking for activities for our young 
families. We have expanded the services for 
families with younger children to include

• Parent and Toddler

• Mothers Together

• Breastfeeding Support Group

• Pregnancy Yoga

• Baby Yoga and Baby Massage

• Music for Babies and Toddlers

• Parenting Workshops

Young Families

Spraoi want the children of Inishowen to have access to activities that make them 
thrive. Every child deserves to have the same opportunities for fun and stimulating 
activities irrespective of geographical location, ability, income, or social circumstance.

We will also consider any activity you want to make available for your children. As 
our founder says ‘if you want a class to learn to stand on your head, Spraoi will put it 
on if we find someone to teach it”.

Special Needs Assistant support is available at no additional cost for any child or 
young person to avail of any activities Spraoi offer. 

• After-School Club

• Breakfast Club

• Club Spraoi

• Multi Activity Camp

• Holiday Camps

• School of Music

• Birthday Parties

Children

Key Areas of Activity
Our services are inclusive of all in the 
community and we provide space and 
opportunities for young people. A youth 
space to give them somewhere to meet. 
Opportunities for development during 
transition year using the enterprise 
resources of FabLab Inishowen and the 
Fadó and Thriftify ecommerce website. 

Young People

Spraoi offer evening classes for adults in a range of areas. 
We are always open to suggestions for new activities. Evening Classes include:

• Flower Arranging

• Interior Design

• Camera Club 

• Dressmaking 

• Couch to 5K

• Operation Transformation

Adults

Spraoi is building a sustainable local community in Inishowen  
through activities that promote enterprise, create jobs and  
encourage work. 

We want to play our part in creating job opportunities,  
encouraging enterprise, and continuing rural development. 

FabLab Inishowen

Co-Work Plus

Fadó

Thriftify

Siopa Spraoi

Enterprise

https://coworkplusinishowen.ie/
https://www.facebook.com/fadocharityshopcarndonagh
https://www.thriftify.ie/seller/spraoi-agus-sport/collection/
https://www.siopaspraoi.com/
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Spraoi’s 
impact!

48% no alternative to Spraoi 

39% Spraoi offered better 
services than the alternatives 
available

13% yes, but similar to 
what Spraoi offers

97% Spraoi positive impact 
on Rural Regeneration

95% believe this is 
very important

92% feel more a part 
of the community

COMMUNIT Y

FELT 
POSITIVE  
IMPACT
63% Immediately

31% Within weeks

6% Longer

MENTAL 
HEALTH
90% Positive impact 
on their mental health

89% Would definitely 
recommend Spraoi to 
a friend

88% Long-lasting 
impact on their lives

VITAL 
COMMUNIT Y 
RESOURCE

Mental Health  
Caroline’s Story
Caroline Lynch is a familiar face to shoppers 
in Spraoi agus Spórt’s charity shop, Fadó. 
Her regular customers come in as much for 
the craic as for a bargain. Caroline loves the 
range of people who come into the shop and 
helps them all find what they are looking 
for. She knows her customers and what’s in 
stock, and regularly pulls something from 
the back of the store to match their size. 

Caroline started volunteering in Fadó over 
three years ago, and now works there part-
time under the community employment 
scheme. She enjoys it so much that she offers 
to work extra hours when we are busy. 

Caroline is helpful and chatty in the shop 
but didn’t always find it easy to speak 
with strangers. As a child she was shy, 
and was bullied at school. She went into a 
deep depression after school and became a 
recluse at home. She spent her time with her 
grandparents in Ballyliffin and had cats for 
company. About 10 years ago she decided 
she had to get up, get out, and meet people. 

She started by doing courses, but it was a 
struggle. When she discovered volunteering, 
she found that being of service to people that 
needed help boosted her confidence. She 
flourished, and discovered she loved talking 
to and helping other people. She found her 
way of making a connection. 

Fadó is an essential resource supporting 
the work of Spraoi agus Spórt. We use the 
funds raised to deliver an alternative respite 
programme. In 2019, we delivered 5,300 hours 
of alternative respite and we want to be 
able to deliver this consistently. Fundraised 
income is also needed to deliver therapy 
workshops to children and young people. 

For Caroline, it’s been a salvation to raise 
money for Spraoi’s work while doing 
something that she enjoys. By keeping busy, 
she is maintaining her physical and mental 
health. This social aspect of the shop is 
important not just in her life, but also in the 
lives of Fadó’s regular customers. 

Caroline compares the way she’s grown by 
working with Spraoi in the last 10 years to 
the Ugly Duckling story. It reminds her that 
the bullied grey duckling grew to become a 
beautiful white swan. 

She feels privileged to be part of the team in 
Fadó, supporting the work of Spraoi, which 
she describes as second to none. She lost her 
grandfather in November 2020, just a couple 
of years after her granny died. So, she has 
decided now to dedicate her life to voluntary 
work, because she loves it. 
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Family Support  
Colleen’s Story
When her first son Noah, was born Colleen 
attended the Breastfeeding Support Group 
at Spraoi every week. When her second 
child Faye was born, she was at Spraoi every 
day. She took part in most of the parenting 
support groups: Breastfeeding, Mothers 
Together, Parent and Toddler. 

“It was an absolute godsend to have 
somewhere to go every day,” says Colleen. 
“My children practically grew up in 
Spraoi!”. 

Noah was a premature baby and the public 
health nurse and breastfeeding group were 
a great support for Colleen. She doesn’t think 
she would have breastfed for as long without 
that help. Through the breastfeeding group, 
she realised how much this support network 
was needed. Over her years of involvement, 
she saw how many women took part in 
the group. She also witnessed the growing 
network of friendships built outside the 
support group, but directly as a result of it. 

Colleen feels that many young mothers 
would be very isolated at home all day, 
without the social outlets provided by  
Spraoi agus Spórt. 

“The staff at Spraoi provided such a 
warm welcome – taking the baby so you 
could have a cup of tea and a scone. The 
encouragement from staff like Louise 
in Spraoi also provided much needed 
positivity for mothers.” 

These women were at Spraoi with their 
babies every week, until they had to go back 
to work, says Colleen. 

Colleen developed a deep understanding 
of the importance of the support groups at 
Spraoi. This led her and her friend Marianne 

at the group, to follow a 2-year peer support 
course with Cuidiú. Colleen and Marianne 
brought a lactation nurse from Sligo to speak 
to the group. Colleen herself is a practice 
nurse in a doctor’s surgery in Carndonagh. 
She regularly deals with mothers bringing 
babies in for their vaccines. So, she saw at 
first hand the increase in breastfeeding in the 
community. She also noticed that many of 
those still breastfeeding at 6 to 12 months had 
attended the Spraoi support groups. 

As her children grew, Colleen moved on to 
the toddler groups at Spraoi. This was often 
the only place she could take her children to 
get social interaction outside her home. There 
she found the familiar faces, warm reception 
from staff, and a cup of tea and scone. 

When Colleen went back to work after her 
third daughter, her childminder still brought 
the children to the groups at Spraoi. This had 
a positive effect on her children’s social lives 
and social skills. Out shopping with 2-year-
old Gracie in Carndonagh, Colleen noticed 
her daughter seemed to know and greet 
more people than her! 

As a working mum, the services in Spraoi 
were a great support to Colleen. These 
included after school services and summer 
camps, and she found the services were 
both flexible and affordable. Colleen has 
used Spraoi since her youngest was 2 weeks 
old, and now he is 9 years old. She feels 
Carndonagh is so lucky to have a service like 
Spraoi, 

“always offering something new, 
innovating and expanding”. 

With the pandemic, she misses Spraoi in her 
life. She really feels for the parents who faced 
social isolation during the pandemic, without 
the Spraoi support groups. Fortunately, 
Spraoi developed online parenting classes 
and programmes to fill this void. 

Physical Health  
Lisa’s Story 
Spraoi agus Spórt have a proven track 
record in sustaining funded projects. In 2014, 
the Coca Cola Thank You Fund provided 
funding for a Couch to 5k programme. The 
programme aimed to encourage people to 
adopt more active and healthy lifestyles and 
to meet new people. Spraoi continued the 
programme beyond the initial funding and 
have made positive differences to the lives of 
many. This is Lisa’s story: 

I had done a wee bit of running before 
but not much. I always felt awkward 
out running for some reason. My sister 
had initially registered for the Couch to 
5k (c25k) programme and asked me to 
go too. She ended up not finishing it, but 
I just kept running. It felt so much better 
running as part of a group. 

I would have missed so much if I hadn’t 
taken part in the Couch to 5K programme. 
I had been doing very little exercise before 
doing the c25k. This led me on to join 
lots of other events. These ranged from 
5ks to marathons, cross country & trail 
races and 100m in track and field. I even 
took part in adventure races like Shore 
to Summit and Gaelforce North. I would 

never have taken part in any of those had 
I not done the Spraoi c25k. 

Then there are all the locations I ran in. 
I was all around Inishowen & Donegal, 
through the beautiful Mournes, and past 
all the London, Dublin and Barcelona 
landmarks. 

Last but not least, I would have missed 
out on the friendships I made in the 
Couch to 5K programme. Many problems 
and dilemmas get solved on long runs. 
Someone may give you that different 
perspective or have been through 
something similar. So, by the time the 
run is over your head is in a better place. 
Running in a group also brings that sense 
of community. 

Before c25k I was commuting to work in 
Derry, Monday to Friday and spending 
most of the weekend catching up with 
housework. Now things are so different, 
for the better. 



34

Connecting People Changing Lives

35

Celebrating 10 Years

Enterprise:  
Thriftify 
In November 2020, Spraoi agus Spórt 
partnered with Dublin-based start-up 
company Thriftify to launch a new online 
version of our charity shop, Fadó. 

The initiative was in response to Covid as 
restrictions, temporarily closed the shop 
premises. It allowed us to create a new 
online store, which connects us with the 
wider Irish market. Thriftify enabled us to 
place hundreds of donated items online, 
unlocking the fundraising potential of 
e-commerce during the pandemic.

In advance of the launch, we worked 
with Transition Year (TY) students from 
Carndonagh Community School to help set 
up the online shop. The whole experience 
provided the students with practical business 
skills in e-commerce, sustainable fashion, 
and digital marketing.

We are always seeking to innovate and 
improve how we do things at Spraoi says 
CEO Helen Nolan. 

“The pandemic made us develop new 
ways to maintain our connections with 
customers and raise funds for our vital 
services.”

“Covid-19 has been a significant catalyst 
for the digitisation of services at Spraoi 
since the outbreak of the virus in early 
March. This included, for example 
the provision of new online Zoom 
activities for children and teenagers. 
Our strategic decision to partner with 
Thriftify is also a new way of helping 
our charity shop survive in a rapidly 
changing business environment. 

Elaine Farren, TY Co-Ordinator at 
Carndonagh Community School 
said the initiative provided great 

opportunities for students to test their 
skills. She said it was wonderful to see 
them successfully apply course theory 
into practice in a workplace environment.

Elaine said it allowed TY students “to 
take full responsibility in establishing 
the Fadó charity shop online. This in turn 
has improved the students’ maturity, 
confidence and self-reliance.”

Rónán Ó Dálaigh, Co-founder and CEO 
of Thriftify said they were delighted to be 
working with Fadó and all the team in 
Spraoi. 

“At the core of our mission is to connect 
charity shops with consumers who care. 
Fadó, as our most remote charity shop, 
holds a very special place in the Thriftify 
community. 

“Helping communities to continue to 
support local businesses and causes is 
now more important than ever for us. 
Indeed, social enterprises such as Spraoi 
do vital work for the community around 
them. We are humbled to be able to 
provide them with a way of continuing to 
sell donated goods as a way of earning 
income.”

In March 2020 all Spraoi agus Spórt services were suspended when the 
Covid lockdown was introduced. But the Spraoi culture of innovation 
allowed us to quickly pivot our business model and respond to our 
community’s needs. We created a project to connect and improve lives 
in the community during this global pandemic. And Project Cineál 
(meaning kind) was born. 

Adapt and Respond: 
The Pandemic and Project Cineál

898 calls
to helpline

443 hours
of online classes for 

children and teenagers 
with a disability and/or 

autism

1,000 visors
 produced in  

our digital 
fabrication lab

59 families
supported by our 

Food Bank

500  
care packs

distributed to  
older people

16 Christmas 
Dinners

delivered to vulnerable 
and isolated people
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We worked alongside other local community 
groups for this project with Spraoi staff 
providing the operational structure for Project 
Cineál to address specific, urgent local needs. 

• We set up a Helpline from 7am-7pm 
Monday to Sunday to pick up and  
deliver grocery and prescription orders  
for vulnerable and older people. 

• We made visors in our FabLab for 
Community care homes and businesses.

• We joined forces with others to set 
up the Inishowen Food Bank across 
the peninsula. Our partners were The 
Inishowen Development Partnership, The 
Exchange Buncrana, The Irish Red Cross 
Muff, Moville GAA and Moville Family 
Resource Centre.

• We brought our classes online using zoom. 

• We set up an online Book Club called 
“Chapter and Virus.”

• We provided one-to-one alternative respite 
sessions to support teenagers with a 
disability and/or autism and their families.

• We provided a safe space for counselling 
for children, young people and adults.

• We distributed over 500 care packs for 
older people on behalf of Donegal County 
Council.

The Chapter and Virus book club was 
established at the start of the pandemic. 
At that time, people were all feeling a little 
isolated. So, this was a great opportunity 
to have a regular catch up with other like-
minded people. As one participant Marian 
said 

“we sometimes even discussed the books! 
The club is still going strong and we’ve 
even met up in ‘real life’.”

Project Cineál made a big difference to 
the lives of people in Inishowen, when 
they needed it. But Covid-19 was also a 
significant catalyst for the digitisation of 
services at Spraoi. We moved services online, 
started selling FabLab products online, and 
held online raffles. We adapted quickly to 
maintain connections with users and develop 
alternative ways to raise funds for our vital 
services. 

We had to adapt because lockdown resulted 
in a significant reduction in revenue. The 
centre closed and many ‘paid for’ classes 
and activities ended. The main fundraising 
stream - the charity shop Fadó - closed 
twice over 2020. Fundraising events such 
as a golf classic, a coffee morning and an 
annual 5k walk/run, were cancelled. So 
Spraoi partnered with Dublin-based start-up 
Thriftify to launch an online version of the 
Fadó charity shop. The outcome was to bring 
hundreds of donated items to a wider Irish 
market, unlocking the fundraising potential 
of e-commerce. Our online presence had 239 
orders which were delivered nationwide and 
which generated €2617. A great start.

Protecting our staff’s jobs was a key priority 
for the Board of Spraoi from the beginning 
of Covid. Our Board ensured that all staff 
continued to be employed throughout 
the pandemic. The role played by all staff 
ensured that Spraoi was able to adapt and 
respond quickly and with considerable 
impact within the community.

January
Spraoi agus Spórt started 2020 on a 
bright note. We won an award  
from the Social Enterprise 
Development Fund and  
attended their showcase  
event to receive it. The  
fund provides financial  
support to social enterprises  
who positively impact the  
social and economic fabric of  
their community. Spraoi was  
one of 16 awardees receiving  
a grant and business support. 

March
On March 15, the Government announced exceptional restrictions to people’s 
movements and activities, in response to the Covid-19 global pandemic. For the 
Inishowen community, many people were facing a dramatic and swift change in 
their lives. No going to work - except for essential services, and no school for young 
people. No social travel, and over 70s were to stay in their home. Spraoi agus Spórt 
responded rapidly by creating and launching Project Cinéal. 

Cinéal is the Irish word for kind. Spraoi staff provided  
the operational structure for the project and we worked  
alongside volunteers from other local community groups  
to deliver it. The project set up a special helpline to take  
grocery orders and organise delivery from pharmacies  
and other local businesses. It created ideas for arts, 
crafts, and exercise. It provided a social connection  
for people who couldn’t visit friends and family,  
go shopping or out for a coffee. 

Month by Month

February
Spraoi agus Spórt attended  
a special reception at Áras  
an Uachtaráin on 21st February.  
It was for a celebration of the 20th  
birthday of The Wheel, Ireland’s 
national association of community 
and voluntary organisations.  
The invite was extended to us  
because we won the Wheel’s  
award of Social Enterprise of  
the Year. It was a privilege to attend 
such a special event. 
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April
As Covid-19 restrictions continued, Spraoi 
realised that families with children and young 
people with a disability were particularly 
isolated. So, from April, we initiated a unique 
series of fun online activities to brighten up 
their day. The mix of activities included how 
to make things at home, art demonstrations, 
online music and singing, and storytime 
sessions. These activities aimed to entertain 
and educate the children in a creative way. 
They also allowed them to make ‘joyous 
reconnections’ with their friends at Spraoi. 

The impact of the Covid restrictions were particularly acute for families of children 
with disabilities. They missed their daily routine and their contact with friends 
and family members. The loss of access to healthcare professionals added to their 
increasing stress and isolation. 

Thankfully, the Spraoi online classes had a positive impact on these children and 
young people. Parents expressed their delight at the service. One family said: 

“We are feeling very blessed that Spraoi agus Spórt have begun offering services 
to our family, to support our child with autism to cope with the incredible change 
in routine as a result of Covid-19. It allows us to add the designated times to his 
schedule and bulks out his day. He enjoys following along with the art projects 
and particularly likes seeing his friends on the group call. The group are putting 
lots of effort into the support in the means of videos and links to arts. It is much 
appreciated and eases some of the anxiety felt by our son”.

Another mother using the online support services was equally positive: 

“Our daughter has a moderate general learning disability (GLD) and is very 
sociable. She has been missing school and the social contact of her friends 
terribly and has been very difficult to manage in the home (during the 
lockdown). When Spraoi suggested the Zoom meetings I wasn’t sure if she 
would like them because she is non-verbal. But I couldn’t have been more 
wrong! The tutor talks to each child by name and gives them a chance to 
respond in the group. She loves the art demos, story time and music and above 
all, the familiar friendly faces that she knows from Spraoi. She looks forward to 
each Zoom meeting and it has added purpose and fun to her day!”

May
As we approached our 10th birthday celebrations, six  
MBA students from Trinity College Dublin began a  
project with us. The project team – Team Tionchar  
- researched the Spraoi agus Spórt impact and  
achievements over the last 10 years.

‘Team Tionchar’ (meaning impact) developed  
user-friendly social impact measurement tools.  
They used these tools to assess the impact Spraoi has had in  
addressing social needs and challenges in Inishowen. This highlighted the scale 
of our achievements and growth. In 2010, we offered 3 activities per week, for 15 
families and 20 children. Before lockdown in 2020, around 700 people attended over 
60 different weekly classes and activities at Spraoi. We had begun with a parent 
and toddler group in 2010. We now work across five different areas – young families, 
children, young people, adults, and enterprise. 

The team included Edel McCabe, who is originally from Inishowen. Edel said she 
was delighted to work with the innovative and inspiring social enterprise based in 
her home area. Spraoi will use the research findings and project report to inform our 
ambitious future plans. These include a state-of-the-art ‘Youth Space’ for teenagers, a 
technology-enabled creative lab, and a rural co-working hub for entrepreneurs. 

June 
Once again, Spraoi innovated to meet community needs in the global pandemic. We 
used our FabLab (Digital Fabrication Laboratory) equipment to produce Personal 
Protective Equipment for those working on the front line. Specifically, we used our 
3D-printer and laser cutter technology to manufacture face shields or ‘protective 
visors’. We distributed them to community nursing homes, supermarkets, retailers, 
and construction businesses throughout Inishowen. 

At our FabLab facility, people can turn their  
creative ideas into new products and prototypes.  
They do this by using digital design, 3D printers,  
laser-cutting and other advanced digital  
manufacturing technology.
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July
Our charity shop, Fadó, generates essential income  
to support the cost of providing support hours for  
children with disabilities. The shop doors  
remained closed due to Covid. But Spraoi  
agus Spórt partnered with Dublin-based 
start-up Thriftify to launch an online version  
of the Fadó charity shop. This was a huge  
success. We brought hundreds of donated  
items to a wider Irish market and unlocked the fundraising potential of e-commerce 
for Spraoi. The launch of the online charity shop also provided a great opportunity for 
Transition Year students from Carndonagh Community School. They worked hard 
on setting it up, building their practical business skills in e-commerce, sustainable 
fashion, and digital marketing. 

Covid-19 was a significant catalyst for the digitisation of services at Spraoi agus Spórt.  
We moved services online, started selling FabLab products online, and held online 
raffles. We adapted quickly to maintain connections with users and develop 
alternative ways to raise funds for our vital services.

August 
For over 10 years Spraoi always delivered camps every summer ranging from 
technology, to arts and crafts, pier swimming and surfing. This year we moved some 
of our camps online. We teamed up with Inishowen Surf School to deliver 4 weeks 
of surfing and pier swimming. This helped to bring a little bit of normality to our 
children’s lives during the month of August.

We were also delighted to offer 800 hours of recreational activity for children and 
teenagers with a disability and/or autism. We delivered this under our Summer 
Provision programme, which was funded by the Department of Education. This 
programme was a lifeline for so many families in our community. It was warmly 
welcomed by the children and teenagers,  
who were delighted to meet up with  
their peers.

September 
Spraoi agus Spórt created a new partnership with Donegal County Council’s 
Regeneration and Development Team. We worked together so the Inishowen public 
could view plans for a proposed Town and Regeneration project for Carndonagh. The 
project aims to address the physical and social regeneration of the town through 
repurposing vacant or derelict buildings. The plans involve a new central hub hosting 
youth, commercial, social, creative, recreation, and tourism activities. They also 
propose a co-working hub for remote workers. 

They include public amenities for a changing places facility, a new digital fabrication 
library, offices, training, and exhibition spaces. A proposed social space for young 
people and teenagers which includes a study hub, and a social room. 

This Digital & Creative Hub will provide a wonderful  
space to help children and young people learn 21st  
century skills. For their future, they will need  
skills in Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and  
Mathematics (STEAM).

October 
Fundraising is critical for Spraoi agus Spórt 
because we do not receive state funding for all our 
programmes. Fundraisers ensure we can deliver 
our alternative respite programme and therapy 
workshops to children and young people. 

We faced a significant reduction in revenue when the 
centre had to close in lockdown, suspending many 
‘paid for’ classes and activities. Our main fundraising 
stream, the charity shop Fadó, closed twice over 2020. 
Fundraising events such as a golf classic, a coffee 
morning and an annual 5k walk/run, were all cancelled for 2020. 

So, in October, we launched a fundraising draw with over €2k in cash prizes. We sold 
€20 tickets via an online platform, giving people the opportunity to win €200 per 
week over 10 weeks. This enabled the community to support our ongoing work and 
our new pandemic services, such as the Inishowen Food Bank. 

€

€

https://www.facebook.com/fadocharityshopcarndonagh


42

Connecting People Changing Lives

43

Celebrating 10 Years

November
This month was the actual 10th anniversary of our foundation. When Spraoi agus 
Spórt started out, just 15 families were involved. By November 2020, we catered for 
over 2,000, had 15 full and part-time staff roles and 60 course facilitators. This made 
our social enterprise a major local employer in Inishowen.

In November, our CEO Helen Nolan was asked to speak at the National Social 
Enterprise Conference 2020. The theme was ‘Shaping a Sustainable, Inclusive 
Recovery’ and there was an online audience of almost 500 people. These included the 
Minister for Social Protection, Community, and Rural Development and the Islands, 
Heather Humphreys. Helen focused on the topic of “Deficient Demand – service 
provision and Covid-19 response.” She told the story of how Spraoi had grown and 
developed in our first ten years. She also addressed the ways in which we adapted 
and innovated to meet the needs of our community in the pandemic. 

The icing on the cake was winning the Pride of Place award, which was presented 
‘virtually’ by RTE’s Marty Morrissey. He described us as 

“exceptional, a dynamic organisation with a significant record of solid 
achievement”. 

He went on to say that the judges were extremely impressed with our sense of 
purpose, pride of place, flexibility to change, and passion. He also referred to our 

“organisation, professionalism, 
inclusiveness, and ability to 
expand their services to other 
communities. This is a leading 
social enterprise truly aligned in 
every respect to the needs of the 
community.”

December
December 2020 was a Christmas unlike any other. Donegal had been in lockdown 
for much of November. Families kept their distance from each other to protect the 
vulnerable. Shopping for special gifts was limited by shop closures and restricted 
movement. 

But Spraoi agus Spórt are always ready to innovate to meet the needs of the 
community. So, we did what we could in the difficult Christmas season to support the 
community. 

Our Inishowen FabLab designed and offered personalised Christmas decorations. 
The decorations showed the map of Inishowen and Donegal and could be 
personalised with a message. They were available online and on sale in Caffe 
Banba’s Carndonagh Christmas Market. The decorations were a huge success, with 
almost 500 orders met in time for Christmas. People bought them for family members 
who couldn’t get home for Christmas. They were also bought as thank you gifts for 
teachers, or for baby’s celebrating their first Christmas. The FabLab lead technician, 
with the help of Spraoi staff, worked hard to ensure all orders were ready in time.

The creative resources of the FabLab were also used for a shop local campaign. The 
campaign was pioneered by Spraoi, with the Carndonagh Trader’s Association. 
FabLab Inishowen and Donegal County Council’s Creative Community project group, 
designed and produced a bespoke Christmas decoration as a reward for people 
shopping locally. Deirdre Bradley from the Carndonagh Trader’s Association said it 
was a wonderful collaborative project. She added that they were proud the gift was 
made in Carndonagh. 

Spraoi was concerned about the isolation faced by  
people cocooning, whose family could not be with them  
this Christmas. So, we worked with other groups around  
Inishowen to make sure that everyone could have a  
Christmas Dinner. Spraoi distributed 16 Christmas dinners  
in Carndonagh. Those alone or facing a difficult Christmas  
for whatever reason, received a freshly cooked Christmas  
dinner along with some treats. This campaign was funded  
through donations from the community and achieved  
through the time and effort of volunteers. It was yet  
another example of the tireless work of  
Spraoi to support everyone in their  
community. 
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2020 in Pictures 2020 in the News 

Spraoi agus Spórt appeals for 
donations to Inishowen Food Bank 
April 29, 2020

Spraoi agus Spórt in Carndonagh has 
appealed to the public to donate to 
the newly established Inishowen Food 
Bank, which provides a vital lifeline 
for vulnerable individuals and families 
who are finding it difficult to make 
ends meet during 
the Covid-19 crisis. READ MORE

Highland Radio  
April 30, 2020

Spraoi agus Spórt in Carndonagh is 
urging people to donate to the newly 
established Inishowen Food Bank, 
saying it provides a vital lifeline for 
vulnerable individuals and families who 
are finding it difficult to make ends meet 
during the Covid-19 crisis.

READ MORE

RTE 1 
May 05, 2020

Our work during COVID-19 featured  
on the programme “Ireland on Call”.

Donation lifts spirits at Spraoi 
agus Spórt 
May 5, 2020

Spraoi agus Spórt, a multi-award 
winning social enterprise in 
Carndonagh, has welcomed a €500 
donation from AIB to help facilitate 
a unique series of fun online Zoom 
activities.

READ MORE

https://www.donegallive.ie/news/news/538661/spraoi-agus-sport-appeals-for-donations-to-inishowen-food-bank.html
https://www.highlandradio.com/2020/04/30/support-sought-for-inishowen-food-bank/
https://www.donegaldaily.com/2020/05/05/donation-lifts-spirits-at-family-support-service/
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The social enterprise groups rising 
to the challenge of Covid-19 in 
local communities 
June 05, 2020

One of the few positives about the 
Covid-19 crisis has been the way 
that many communities have rallied 
together during one of the most 
difficult times in 
living memory. READ MORE

FabLab’s fabulous “Visor Army” 
protecting frontline workers 
May 18, 2020

Carndonagh’s Spraoi agus Spórt are 
planning to scale up their efforts in the 
fight against the coronavirus pandemic 
by manufacturing more laser-cut face 
shields for frontline workers. 

READ MORE

Trinity students make huge impact 
with Carndonagh’s Spraoi agus 
Spórt  
May 11, 2020

Six MBA students from Trinity College 
Dublin who have named themselves 
‘Team Tionchar’ (‘Team Impact’) are 
working on an exciting new project 
with Carndonagh’s 
Spraoi agus Spórt. READ MORE

New €450,000 Hub in Carndonagh 
is key to Post-Covid Recovery  
June 11, 2020

Spraoi agus Spórt have developed 
exciting new plans for a €450k ‘Digital 
& Creative Hub’ in 
Carndonagh. READ MORE

IPB Pride of Place 2020. Winner 
Community Wellbeing Initiative 
November 28, 2020

Winner Community Wellbeing Initiative

Online Alternative: Fadó charity 
shop unlocks web potential 
November 10, 2020

Spraoi agus Spórt in Carndonagh have 
partnered with Dublin-based start-up 
company Thriftify to launch a new 
online version of its 
Fadó charity shop. READ MORE

The Wheel 
Our visor picture featured on The 
Wheel’s video celebrating the great 
work carried out throughout the country 
by social enterprises, community and 
voluntary groups during COVID-19.

Exciting times for Donegal’s 
ubiquitous Spraoi agus Spórt
September 30, 2020

Established during a challenging 
economic landscape in 2010, resilience 
has been a founding principle and one 
of the many reasons it has become 
the heartbeat of the Carndonagh 
community.

READ MORE

Pride of Place Award for Spraoi 
agus Spórt 
December 16, 2020

Spraoi agus Spórt were successful in 
winning the Pride of Place Award in 
the category Community Wellbeing 
Initiative. 

READ MORE

https://www.independent.ie/storyplus/the-social-enterprise-groups-rising-to-the-challenge-of-covid-19-in-local-communities-39259559.html?fbclid=IwAR3XEYLNoASrbUk6eB22jqW2vGmUheDaVR8irYiaVbNULBSDSe5CwYrCYYs
https://www.donegallive.ie/news/news/538661/spraoi-agus-sport-appeals-for-donations-to-inishowen-food-bank.html
https://www.donegaldaily.com/2020/05/11/trinity-students-make-huge-impact-with-carndonaghs-spraoi-agus-sport/
https://www.donegaldaily.com/2020/06/11/new-e450k-hub-in-carndonagh-is-key-to-post-covid-recovery/
https://www.donegalwoman.ie/2020/11/10/online-alternative-fado-charity-shop-unlocks-web-potential/
https://www.donegaldaily.com/2020/09/30/exciting-times-for-donegals-ubiquitous-spraoi-agus-sport/
https://www.donegaldaily.com/2020/12/16/pride-of-place-award-for-spraoi-agus-sport/
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Important Developments 
since 2020
Like most businesses and organisations, the Covid pandemic impacted 
hugely on our activities and the way we ran them. But we met this 
challenge head-on in 2020 and then built on this responsiveness further 
in 2021. 

The most significant response was 
the creation of our rural regeneration 
partnership with Donegal County Council 
– Tús Nua. In April 2021, we secured 
funding of €9.5m for the project to revitalise 
Carndonagh, following the pandemic. 
€8.2m came from the Rural Regeneration & 
Development Fund (RRDF) 2021 with €1.3m 
in match funding from Donegal County 
Council. The funding will cover capital and 
operational costs, including the restoration 
or conversion of local properties in the town 
centre. 

When complete, Tús Nua proposes to offer 
the following: 

• A larger Digital Fabrication Laboratory 
(FabLab).

• A co-working space, which is part of 
the Connected Hubs initiative and the 
European Co-Work project to develop rural 
remote and co-working facilities. 

• A youth space for teenagers, with a youth 
café, games room, study room, mobile 
cinema and music rooms, and an outdoor 
performance space. It will offer the young 
people of Inishowen a safe place to meet 
and hang out with their friends.

• A community kitchen, shed and sensory 
garden.

• New public amenities, including a 
Changing Places toilet facility for those 
with severe mobility issues or disabilities. 

• A Creative Makers Hub for lnishowen craft 
workers. 

In December 2018, Spraoi was handed the 
keys of the buildings formerly known as 
Action Inishowen. Action Inishowen was 
wound down and we were the beneficiaries 
of the two buildings they owned in Millbrae, 
Carndonagh. In January 2019 we established 
a small co-working hub. The Spraoi agus 
Spórt Co-Work Plus facilities are currently 
undergoing extensive renovations and will 
offer their own office space, hot desks and 
virtual address services. 

In February, we decided to ‘Share the Love’ 
with a special Valentine’s Day fundraising 
campaign. We built on the success of the 
personalised Christmas decorations we 
created in our FabLab, which sold really well. 
They were bought online and posted all over 
Ireland and across the world for people. 

We turned our hand to St Valentine’s 
decorations - personalised magnets and 
postcards which we posted to people’s 
Valentine for them. We sold them from our 
website and Facebook Page.

The thing that struck us at Spraoi was 
that people didn’t just send them to their 
boyfriend, girlfriend, husband, or wife. They 
also sent them to anyone they loved and 
missed because of lockdown, such as family 
members and friends.

Outside recognition for our work continued, 
in terms of our nomination for awards. This 
time it acknowledged our work in digital 
and technical fields, including the post-Covid 
digitisation of services. Our CEO, Helen Nolan, 
was a finalist in the Digital Hero section of 
the Digital.ie awards.

https://coworkplusinishowen.ie/
https://coworkplusinishowen.ie/
https://www.weare.ie/ie-digital-town-awards-shortlist/
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As part of this digitisation, we piloted some 
Online Parent and Baby events in February 
2021. We were particularly concerned about 
how lockdown was isolating new parents. 
They were so successful that we launched 
a full online New Mums and Babies 
Programme in April, which ran from May 
to June. This new programme of 11 courses 
and workshops covered everything from 
baby massage and mother and baby yoga, 
to weaning and toilet training. They were 
open to any mums, at home or abroad. Both 
the pilot and full programmes attracted 
attendance from as far away as the US and 
Canada. 

The courses and workshops incorporated 
learning, bonding with the baby, and 
minding your mental health as a parent. 
They also provided a comfortable platform 
for new parents to meet with others going 
through the same experiences in lockdown.

Another challenge for the community was 
the organisation of school tours for children, 
under pandemic restrictions. So Spraoi agus 
Spórt stepped in and secured school tours 
for over 530 local children, after principals 
appealed for help. Under Covid restrictions, 
tours were only permitted if they stayed 
local, so schools wanted help to create 
exciting and engaging days out. 

Social enterprises are unique in their ability 
to respond quickly to local needs, and we are 
no exception. Our staff got creative and put 
together five options for safer small groups, 
so classes could remain in their bubbles and 
each pupil would get more attention. We 
also wanted the local economy to benefit, so 
we engaged with local business and activity 
owners too.

In the end, Spraoi created an exciting 
programme involving fun activities at their 
centre and other local venues. A total of 9 
schools took part, and 538 local children got 

their big day out. These children would have 
missed out on their school tour if we had not 
stepped in.

The tour options included Build a Teddy Bear, 
Design a T-Shirt, surfing, and a visit to our Fab 
Lab. There was also an obstacle course and 
park games. We also worked with Inishowen 
Surf School to provide surfing lessons. We 
gave everyone a personalised medal from 
our Digital Fabrication Laboratory as a 
keepsake of their tour.

It’s important to highlight the fact that 
as a social enterprise, we believe in the 
importance of working with others in our 
community. Doherty's (Fintan’s) provided 
the ice-cream cones, and The Diamond 
Cafe provided the lunches. We worked 
with Inishowen Surf School to provide the 
surfing lessons and BBQ and John Gibbons 
organised the park games and a treasure 
hunt.

Our school tours also catered particularly 
well for children with a disability. Spraoi has 
extensive experience delivering disability 
services and has specialised resources such 
as a state-of-the-art sensory room.

We are continuing to fundraise online and 
our planned fundraiser is in September for 
the prize of a Playstation 5. 

Future Plans

1. Tús Nua plans – including 
funding, a Fablab, CoWorking 
Hub, Youth Space for teenagers 
and a Changing Places facility.

2. Refurbishment of Action 
Inishowen buildings

3. Educational/activity plans

4. Development of Siopa Spraoi – 
online shop selling personalised 
gifts made in Carndonagh

5. Corporate Sponsorship

Building on the achievements of our first 10 
years, we have ambitious and far-reaching 
plans for the future. 

The biggest of these is undoubtedly our 
rural regeneration partnership with 
Donegal County Council – Tús Nua. The 
project was awarded almost €10m in 
funding for capital and operational costs to 
revitalise Carndonagh, following the Covid-19 
pandemic. It aims to bring people of all 
generations back into the town centre for 
community services, education, recreation, 
housing, enterprise, and jobs. It also aims 
to act as a catalyst for economic and social 
change and will open in Autumn 2023. 

Specifically, it proposes to convert or restore 
three properties in the town as follows:

• The former McDonagh Bros. shop and site 
is earmarked for a new Digital Fabrication 
Laboratory, co-working space, and office 
space. It will also offer a youth space for 
teenagers, community kitchen, shed and 
sensory garden.

• It is proposed to create a new through 
access and public amenities in The 
Leprechaun Bar. These include a Changing 
Places toilet facility. 

• It is proposed that the old stone textile 
factory will be rejuvenated to establish a 
Creative Makers Hub for lnishowen craft 
workers. 

Chairperson of Spraoi agus Spórt, Patricia Lee 
says the plans “will be a real game-changer 
for the town centre. Most importantly, they 
will create much-needed employment and 
inclusive opportunities for the future.

The new Digital & Creative Hub will fulfil 
several vital functions:

• It will offer a wonderful space for young 
people to learn the 21st century skills they 
need in STEAM. This covers the fields of 
Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and 
Mathematics (STEAM).

• It will help people of all ages and 
abilities to play, create and learn through 
innovation and invention!

• It will provide a fantastic stimulus for 
local entrepreneurship as an accelerator 
for business start-ups. This will add to 
the wider regeneration and economic 
development of Carndonagh and the 
surrounding areas.

https://spraoiagussport.ie/new-mums-babies-online-programme/
https://spraoiagussport.ie/new-mums-babies-online-programme/
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We were delighted to have received both 
LEADER and Connected Hubs funding 
to refurbish the main building at Action 
Inishowen Millbrae. This funding will enable 
us to completely modernise the space 
and create seven offices ranging from one 
person offices to four people office spaces. 
The Hub offers fibre broadband and a fully 
fitted kitchen including a barista style coffee 
machine and filtered water. We look forward 
to working with Connected Hubs and Grow 
Remote to promote co-working in rural 
Ireland.

The space will also include a calm and 
peaceful counselling room with own access. 
This room will be used by CAMHS (Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services) and is 
available for use by the community.

We will build on the courses and workshops 
which we have delivered over the last 10 
years and we will continue to innovate and 
bring new ideas and workshops to our area. 
Our plans include offering a greater number 
of courses through our FabLab and to include 
courses in Podcasting and Vlogging. We 
hope to set up a Podcasting studio which will 
be available for community use.

Siopa Spraoi was a huge success and we 
plan to continue to add new products and 
designs to our product range. Our plan is 
to expand our Halloween and Christmas 
product range and try and double our sales 
from last year.

We will also look at creating a plan later this 
year to secure corporate sponsorship for our 
FabLab. We have an amazing resource in 
Carndonagh, and we need to secure funding 
so we can deliver workshops to schools and 
groups across the community. 
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Contents Directors’ Report 

1
Summary of Spraoi’s 
Objectives and 
Activities  

Spraoi’s charitable purpose, as set out in 
its constitution, is to establish, promote 
and operate a community development 
programme in Carndonagh, Co. Donegal 
and its environs. This programme will act as 
a focus and catalyst for the local area, with 
a view to promoting cultural welfare and 
education. In particular, it will empower 
specific groups to effectively participate 
in a programme of personal and social 
development.

Our mission, strategic plan, objectives, 
programmes, and goals describe what we 
want to achieve. Our values describe how we 
want to go about our work.

Our strategy has adopted four overarching 
strategic objectives under four themes as 
follows:

To provide an environment which promotes 
and contributes to improved mental health 
outcomes. 

• Providing peer support. 

• Providing physical health initiatives.

• Reducing loneliness through activities and 
volunteering. 

To provide an environment which is 
inclusive and promotes tolerance and 
diversity.

• Providing a Social Inclusion Worker to 
support the needs of those with a disability 
and/or autism.

• Working with Tusla, the HSE, DEIS 
schools and the Home School Completion 
Liaison Officer to target low income and 
disadvantaged families. 

To provide activities which boost 
participation in STEAM & Irish language 
activities. 

• Providing high-end digital technology to all 
in Inishowen through FabLab Inishowen.

• Providing science, technology, engineering, 
art, and math-based activities (STEAM).

• Providing several classes through the Irish 
language, supported by Foras na Gaeilge. 

• Providing adult education classes through 
Donegal ETB.

To contribute to the Rural Regeneration of 
our area 

• To continue to develop vacant buildings, 
build on our existing service provision and 
provide employment.

• To provide a positive and enriching work 
environment for all the staff, volunteers and 
facilitators who contribute so positively to 
our organisation. 

• To collaborate with local businesses and 
organisations to deliver additional services 
locally.

• To ensure that Spraoi agus Spórt 
continues to be a sustainable and viable 
organisation.

Beliefs and Values
We provide affordable and inclusive 
opportunities, activities and experiences 
aligned to the needs of the community, in a 
fun and friendly environment. 

We exist because we believe that everyone 
deserves to have the same opportunities 
irrespective of ability, income, or social 
circumstance.
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We believe that 

• Our children and teenagers with a 
disability and/or autism should have equal 
access to recreational activities in the same 
way as their peers.

• Our young families must be supported 
within our communities.

• Social inclusion and the integration of our 
communities is vitally important in all 
communities.

• Our teenagers need a safe space to meet, 
study and take part in recreational activity. 
We need to support them in every way we 
can and give them a reason to stay in rural 
Ireland.

• We must create space for our diaspora to 
return by offering co-working space and a 
wraparound service in terms of childcare 
and family support.

These core beliefs are consistent with our 
mission and vision.

Vision
To create a successful and sustainable 
social enterprise that enhances the 
local community and encourages other 
communities to adopt the same best 
practices.

Mission
To provide affordable and inclusive 
opportunities, activities and experiences that 
are aligned to the needs of the community.

We value

• Empathy  
We ensure we have a complete 
understanding of our service users and their 
needs so we can provide what they need.

• Including Everyone 
We create a safe environment that is 

accessible to everyone regardless of ability, 
income, or social circumstance.

• Making an Impact 
We focus on the emotional, social, and 
economic benefits that our services have for 
our users.

• Community leads the way 
We bring families, local business, and 
stakeholders together for the greater good 
of the community.

• Ideas 
We are always open and receptive to new 
ideas and how they can be successfully 
delivered.

• Sustainable 
We aim to build a sustainable model that 
other communities could replicate and 
benefit from.

 

Activities
We work across 5 key areas:

Young
Families

Children

Young
People

Adults

Enterprise

Young Families: We pride ourselves on 
delivering services to support our young 
families. These include parent and toddler, 
breastfeeding support, mothers together 
support, baby massage, baby yoga and 
baby reflexology. In addition, we offer music 
and song and workshops such as weaning, 
toilet training and behaviour management.

Children: We deliver so many opportunities 
for children which are affordable and 
inclusive. These include breakfast club, after-
school club, school of music, creative writing, 
creative arts, digital fabrication. We also run 
holiday camps such as multi-activity camps, 
surfing, pier swimming, cooking and baking 
and technology-based activities.

Young People: We offer an alternative 
respite programme for teenagers with a 
disability and/or autism. This gives these 
teenagers an opportunity to take part in 
recreational activities in the same way as 
their peers. We also offer classes for young 
people such as cooking and baking, surfing 
and digital technology through our FabLab.

Adults: We deliver a range of evening classes 
supported by Donegal ETB for the adults in 
our community. Classes include cooking, 
interior design, and dressmaking. We also 
have a vibrant Operation Transformation and 
Couch to 5k programme which we roll out 
annually.

Enterprise: Our enterprise arm includes 
FabLab Inishowen, a digital fabrication 
laboratory. The FabLab supports Siopa 
Spraoi, an online shop selling personalised 
wooden gifts. Our charity shop Fadó is 
an important income stream for us. We 
have now brought it online via the Thriftify 
platform. The Corn Mill in the former Action 
Inishowen main building supports office 
and co-working space. Folláine, the outer 
building, offers CAMHS, Art Therapy and 
Counselling supports.

2
Financial Review
The financial outcome for 2020 is set out in 
the Statement of Financial Activities. This is 
the first year that the financial statements 
have been presented under the Charities 
SORP. Comparative amounts have been 
restated to ensure comparability.

In 2020, Spraoi total income was €715,270 
and expenditure of €527,560 resulting in a 
surplus for the year of €187,710. There was 
a significant uplift in income in 2020. The 
expenditure year on year was consistent, 
reflecting the continuation of the work of 
Spraoi throughout the pandemic. 

Income 
In 2020, Spraoi had total income of €715,270 
which was higher than the income levels 
achieved in 2019. This increase is due to the 
considerable additional income received 
from capital funding and Covid supports 
approximately €150,000.

Charitable Activities 
In 2020, Spraoi received a total of €338,504 
in grants for charitable activities. This 
represents a 3% decrease from the previous 
year. Additional State funding was received, 
including grants from Pobal’s Stability Fund 
which was critical to the continuation of 
our services. A small number of staff were 
in receipt of the government-funded wage 
subsidy schemes during the year. Pobal was 
the single largest funder during the year. 
They provided €267,512 - almost 55% of our 
total statutory grant income, or 37% of total 
income. 
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Donations and Legacies 
Income from donations and legacies 
comprises donations from individual donors, 
corporate donors, trusts and foundations. In 
2020, we received €20,377 from this income 
stream. This is an increase of €16,820 on 
2019 because of a one-off donation from the 
Action Inishowen committee.

Our fundraising activities decreased by 
€17,086 - almost 72% - because of Covid 
restrictions. We were unable to host our 
annual coffee morning, 5k fun run and 
golf classic. We made the move to digital 
fundraising and ran a successful Christmas 
raffle and raised €3,565 using the iDonate 
platform.

Other Trading Activities 
Income from other trading activities was 
€90,928 during the year. This represents 
a 39% decrease from the previous year. 
Fees for services fell by €58,425 – a 50% 
reduction compared to 2019 - because of 
Covid restrictions. Included in the total 
figure is retail income of €23,281 from our 
charity shop, Fadó. Also included is €7,808 
from Siopa Spraoi – our online shop selling 
personalised wooden gifts made in the 
FabLab. The forced closure of Fadó for so 
many months had a dramatic impact on 
trading activities for Spraoi. 

However, bringing Fadó online and 
launching Siopa Spraoi did help to counteract 
the reduction in income.

The Government stepped in with a number 
of measures which helped. These included 
grants from various sources including the 
Local Authority, Revenue Wage Subsidy 
Schemes and the Pobal Stability Fund.

Many services were initially postponed 
before we moved them online. But in many 
cases, they were cancelled because schools 
restricted access due to Covid-19. 

Expenditure 
Total expenditure at €527,560 was consistent 
with the spend of €533,298 from last year. 
This is because Spraoi continued to deliver 
services throughout the pandemic. 

Pension
All employees are entitled to join the 
Company PRSA scheme.

Reserves 
The Board has the responsibility for 
establishing an appropriate reserve policy. 
It is Spraoi policy to retain sufficient reserves 
to safeguard the continuity of its operations 
while committing the maximum possible 
resources to its current services. The Board 
aims to have 13 weeks of budgeted operating 
costs as its reserves plan. The reserve policy is 
reviewed annually. 

The total reserves of €433,113 at year end 
(2019: €245,403) falls into two categories: 

Restricted funds 
Restricted funds represent income received 
that can only be used for particular purposes. 
Such purposes are within the overall aims of 
Spraoi. It is Spraoi policy to fully apply such 
funds for the purposes for which they were 
donated as quickly as possible. Restricted 
reserves at 31st December 2020 were €8,927 
(2019: €0). 

Unrestricted funds 
Unrestricted funds at 31st December 2020 
were €424,186 (2019: €245,403). These are 
funds that have no specific restrictions 

attached to them, but are categorised as 
follows: 

•  General unrestricted funds are funds 
for use at the discretion of the Board in 
furtherance of the objectives of Spraoi. 
Where balances arise at the year end, 
these funds are generally utilised in the 
upcoming financial year.

 •  Designated funds represent amounts that 
Spraoi has, at its discretion, set aside for 
specific purposes, which would otherwise 
form part of the general unrestricted funds 
of the Charity. 

Going Concern 
The directors have carried out a detailed 
review and assessment of likely income and 
expenditure during 2021 and beyond and are 
satisfied, subject to the ongoing uncertainty 
regarding the Covid-19 pandemic and having 
made reasonable assumptions, that the 
company can continue to carry out most of 
its activities during this time and that it can 
continue to meet its obligations as they fall 
due.

The company has suitable reserves in 
place and the directors are confident that 
necessary public funding will continue for 
at least the next 12 months. On this basis the 
directors deem it appropriate to prepare the 
financial statements on a going concern 
basis.

The financial statements do not include 
any adjustments that may arise should the 
company be unable to continue as a going 
concern.

Further Information 
Vetting 
Spraoi are fully compliant with the 
obligations of the National Vetting Bureau 
(Children and Vulnerable Adults) Act 2012, 
which commenced in April 2016. Spraoi 
applies Child Protection policies, which are 
based on the Children First Act 2015 and 
Children First Guidelines 2017, and best 
practice recruitment policies and procedures. 
Spraoi staff are re-vetted every 3 years in line 
with best practice. 

Accounting Records 
The directors acknowledge their 
responsibilities, under section 281 to section 
285 of the Companies Act 2014 to keep 
adequate accounting records for the 
company and effective compliance with the 
requirements of the sections through the 
engagement of personnel with appropriate 
expertise and by providing adequate 
resources to the financial function. The 
directors are satisfied that such resources 
have been put in place by Spraoi. The 
accounting records of the company 
are maintained at the registered office 
and principal place of business at Unit 7 
SuperValu, Carndonagh, Co Donegal F93 
AY6D.

Payment of Creditors
The directors acknowledge their 
responsibility for ensuring compliance with 
the provisions of the European Communities 
(Late Payment in Commercial Transactions) 
Regulations 2012. It is the company’s policy 
to agree payment terms with all suppliers 
and to adhere to those payment terms.
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Post Balance Sheet Events 
There have been no events subsequent to 
the year-end that require an adjustment 
to, or additional disclosure in, the Financial 
Statements. In April 2021, Spraoi in 
partnership with Donegal County Council 
were awarded €9.5 million of funding from 
the Rural Regeneration Development Fund. 
These funds are not included in the accounts. 
This project is expected to commence in 
September 2021 with a completion date of 
September 2023.

Relevant Audit Information 
The Board believe that they have taken all 
steps necessary to inform themselves of 
any relevant audit information. They have 
established that the Charity’s statutory 
auditor is aware of that information. In so far 
as they are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the Charity’s statutory 
auditors have not been provided. 

Tax Clearance 
Spraoi complies with Circular 44/2006 “Tax 
Clearance Procedures Grants, Subsidies and 
Similar Type Payments” by providing the tax 
clearance access number to grant providers 
when requested. 

Auditor 
The Auditor, MLMG has agreed to continue 
in office under Section 383(2) of the 
Companies Act 2014. A resolution proposing 
their reappointment will be put to the 
Annual General Meeting. 

Directors’ Compliance 
Statement 
The Directors acknowledge that they are 
responsible for securing the Company’s 
compliance, with the relevant obligations, 

as defined in the Companies Act 2014, and 
as required by Section 225 of that Act. They 
confirm that: 

•  A compliance policy document has been 
drawn up, that sets out policies that in their 
opinion, are appropriate to the Company 
respecting compliance, by the Company, 
with its relevant obligations. 

•  Appropriate arrangements or structures 
are in place that are, in their opinion, 
designed to secure material compliance 
with the Company’s relevant obligations. 

•  During the financial year, the 
arrangements or structures referred to 
above have been reviewed.

Name Position Length of 
Service

Patricia Lee Chairperson 2 years

Cliodhna Byrne Company 
Secretary

7 years

Charles Bradley Treasurer 3 years

Elaine Harkin Director 7 years

Maria McElwaine Director 7 years

Brid McGonagle Director 3 years

Patricia Bracken Director 3 years

3
Structure, Governance,  
and Management 
Board Members

Directors’ Responsibilities 
Statement
The directors are responsible for preparing 
the Directors’ Report and the financial 
statements, in accordance with Irish law and 
regulations.

Irish company law requires the directors 
to prepare the financial statements for 
each financial year. Under the law, the 
directors have elected to prepare the 
financial statements in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2014 and Financial Reporting 
Standard 102 - The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland’.

Under company law, the directors must not 
approve the financial statements unless 
they are satisfied they give a true and fair 
view of the assets, liabilities and financial 
position of the company as at the financial 
year end date, of the profit or loss for that 
financial year and otherwise comply with 
the Companies Act 2014.

In preparing these financial statements, the 
directors are required to:

• Select suitable accounting policies for the 
company’s financial statements and then 
apply them consistently.

• Make judgments and accounting 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

• State whether the financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with 
applicable accounting standards, identify 
those standards, and note the effect and 
the reasons for any material departure 
from those standards; and

• Prepare the financial statements on 
the going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the 
company will continue in business.

The directors confirm they have complied 
with the above requirements when preparing 
the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for ensuring 
that the company keeps or causes to be kept 
adequate accounting records which:

• correctly explain and record the 
transactions of the company, 

• enable at any time the assets, liabilities, 
financial position and profit or loss of 
the company to be determined with 
reasonable accuracy, 

• enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements and Directors’ Report comply 
with the Companies Act 2014 and 
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• enable the financial statements to be 
audited. 

They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the company and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

Legal Status
Spraoi is a company limited by guarantee, 
not having share capital, incorporated on 
6th December 2013 and governed by the 
Companies Act 2014. 

The constitution of the company is available 
for inspection on the company’s website 
at www.spraoiagussport.ie and on the 
Companies Registration Office website 
(www.cro.ie).

Governance Code
In November 2018, the Charities Regulator 
published its Code of Governance and 
organisations will have to be fully compliant 
by 31 December 2020. This new code is 
principles-based and is like the Governance 
Code for Community, Voluntary and 
Charitable Organisations. During 2019, we 
commenced the process of compliance 
with the Code as it applies to medium 
organisations, and we were compliant at the 
end of December 2020.

Prior to the introduction of the Charities 
Regulator’s Governance Code, Spraoi was 
in compliance with the voluntary code of 
governance for community, voluntary and 
charitable organisations. 

Beneficial Ownership
Article 30(1) of the EU’s Fourth Anti-Money 
Laundering Directive (4AMLD) requires 
all EU Member States to put into national 
law provisions requiring corporate and 
legal entities to obtain and hold adequate, 

accurate and current information on their 
beneficial owner(s) in their own internal 
beneficial ownership register.

During 2019, the Department of Finance in 
Ireland implemented this directive. Spraoi 
filed its return on the Register of Beneficial 
Ownership by the deadline of 21 November 
2019.

Risk review and internal 
controls
In the first half of 2020, the outbreak of 
Covid-19 spread throughout Asia, Europe 
and Worldwide. The initial impact of this has 
been severe and has resulted in a significant 
worldwide slowdown in economic activity. 
In Ireland, the economic impact of this 
pandemic has been characterised by the 
temporary closure of many businesses in 
“non-essential” areas to ensure that people’s 
movements are restricted to slow down the 
spread of the virus. The effect of Covid-19 
presents many risks for Spraoi, the effects of 
which cannot be fully quantified at the time 
of approving the financial statements. As a 
result, the directors consider the implications 
of the Covid-19 pandemic to be a significant 
uncertainty at the time of approving the 
financial statements.

Although the effects cannot be fully 
determined, the directors believe that the 
main risks associated with Covid-19 are as 
follows.

• an initial slow-down in trading activity 
during the period of temporary closure;

• a prolonged period of Government 
recommendations and restrictions on the 
movement of people to contain the virus;

• a potential reduction in economic activity 
following the lifting of restrictions which 
may result in reduced demand for Spraoi’s 
services.

Spraoi conducts an annual Risk Review 
process that is assessed in detail by the 
‘Finance and Audit subgroup’ with senior 
management. This is ultimately reviewed 
and signed off by the board of directors. This 
process involves identification of the major 
risks that Spraoi is exposed to, an assessment 
of their impact and likelihood of happening, 
and a risk mitigation action(s) for each. The 
risk register was updated and reviewed by 
the finance and audit sub-group in January 
2021 and approved by the Board.

General Governance 
Information
Spraoi is governed by a board of directors 
with a maximum number of 11 people. Each 
board member’s term of office is three years 
which may be renewed twice (a total of nine 
years).

Every year at the AGM, up to one third of 
the board members retire by rotation and 
may be eligible for re-election. The process 
for nominations and voting is laid out in the 
‘Director’s Handbook’ document which is 
made available to all members.

The Board members give their time to 
Spraoi on a voluntary basis and receive no 
remuneration. Out-of-pocket expenses may 
be reimbursed, in accordance with policy. 
The Board met four times in 2020 (2019: 5 
times), with an attendance of 85%.

Members of the Board are available to 
consult with and have met on several 
occasions during the year, either individually 
or in groups, to consider particular issues 
Spraoi wished to address, in addition to the 
scheduled Board meetings. 

All members of the Board are fully appraised 
of any such discussions and a Board decision 
sought where relevant. Due to Covid-19, the 
AGM and all the Board and Committee 
meetings, except for the first two in the 

year, were held virtually. The Board and 
Committees adapted quickly to the new 
modes of communication and continued to 
contribute remotely. 

Spraoi is appreciative of how the Board and 
Committees responded to the changing 
requirements over the year and continually 
supported and guided the charity through a 
rapidly evolving and uncertain environment, 
through which Spraoi adapted and 
responded to the needs of the community.

Annual General Meeting: 
The AGM took place on 28 August 2020 at 
7pm online and was attended by 6 out of 7 
directors.

Board subgroups
Spraoi currently has one standing board 
subgroup: Finance, Audit & HR.

All board subgroups are advisory in nature 
and have written terms of reference. 

Policies and procedures for the 
induction and training of board 
members
All new board members receive a ‘Board 
Induction Folder’. This contains all the 
information and documentation that a 
board member requires including: a Board 
Handbook, the Board-member Code of 
Conduct, the governing documents for Spraoi, 
the strategic plan, board minutes from 
the previous 12 months, CEO reports from 
previous 12 months, organisational budget, 
and other relevant documentation. Board 
members also get complete information on 
how Spraoi complies with its governance 
requirements.
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Organisational structure and 
how decisions are made
Spraoi has a staff team based in Carndonagh 
headed by a Chief Executive Officer. All staff 
report to the Chief Executive Officer, who 
reports directly to the board through the 
Chairperson. 

The following decisions are reserved for the 
board to make and approve:

• The Company’s strategic plans and annual 
operating budgets.

• Projects outside the scope of the strategic 
plan;

• Business acquisitions and disposals;

• Decisions on Litigation;

• Appointment/Removal of Subgroup Chairs 
and Members;

• Appointment/Removal of Chief Executive 
Officer;

• Appointment/Removal of Auditors;

• Approval of Borrowing/Finance Facilities;

• Approval of Contracts with term exceeding 
one year or financial liability on Spraoi 
exceeding €50,000;

• Annual Review of Risk and Internal 
Control;

• Approval of new staff positions at director 
level.

Although the board of directors is ultimately 
responsible for Spraoi and for the above 
list, certain duties and responsibilities are 
delegated from the Board of Directors to 
the Chief Executive Officer and through 
the CEO to the staff team. This includes 
implementation of the strategic plan, leading 
and managing Spraoi staff, recruiting 
new staff below director level (once within 
budget), programmes, projects, finances, 

pricing, and all other administrative aspects 
so that Spraoi’s ongoing mission, vision, and 
strategies are fulfilled through behaviour 
that matches our stated values and is in 
alignment with our beliefs.

From time to time, Spraoi agrees to cooperate 
formally with other organisations on specific 
projects or in specific work areas. These 
agreements are often determined by a 
‘Memorandum of Understanding’ or form of 
written agreement which may be approved 
by the board of directors.

Conflicts of Interest 
Spraoi has a Conflicts of Interest policy, 
which was updated and approved by the 
Board in 2021. The policy applies to Board 
and Committee members and senior 
managers who are required to make annual 
declarations of any conflicts of interest. Only 
non-conflicted Board members will decide 
what further role a conflicted director will 
take on that matter. All details regarding 
the conflict of interest, including the action 
arising, will be recorded in the minutes. If it 
is found that a person has failed to disclose 
a conflict of interest, the Board may take 
action against the person. This may include 
seeking the person’s resignation from Spraoi. 
A standing conflict of interest agenda item 
was included for Board meetings in 2021. 
The Board member may continue to engage 
with Spraoi on any non-conflicted matters. 
All Directors, Committee members and 
Senior Managers are required to complete 
an annual declaration of interest’s form. No 
conflicts of interest were noted in 2020.

Protected Disclosures 
Spraoi has a Protected Disclosures policy 
in place to promote the disclosure of 
information relating to wrongdoing in 
the workplace. The policy is reviewed 
by the Board annually. The policy offers 
protection for workers from penalisation in 
circumstances where they make a protected 
disclosure or “whistle blow” about concerns 
they may have about work, standards 
of practice or other areas of malpractice, 
dangerous, illegal or improper activity. No 
disclosures were made during the year 
(2019:0) 

Complaints 
A complaints register is maintained by 
each of the relevant public-facing parts 
of the Charity and these are managed in 
conjunction with the Protected Disclosures 
policy. Spraoi recognises the importance 
of listening to and addressing complaints 
and in this spirit also notes where a formal 
complaint is not received but a “negative 
comment” is made. The Board reviews 
any complaints made from users of our 
services and will also report on these to a 
relevant funder. As signed-up members to 
the fundraising charter, complaints about 
fundraising are recorded and addressed. All 
complaints are dealt with by the Charity and 
are reviewed annually by the Board. In 2020 
there were 0 complaints (2019: 0). 

Data Protection
Spraoi reports on Data Protection events to 
the Audit and Risk Committee. During the 
year there were 0 (2019:0) Subject Access 
Requests.

Standards 
Spraoi Board of Directors is committed to 
maintaining high standards of corporate 
governance. Spraoi is a strong proponent 
of ethical fundraising, good governance 
and transparent financial reporting. Our 
Board has formally adopted and monitors 
compliance with: 

•  Guidelines for Organisations on 
Fundraising from the Public: Spraoi staff, 
volunteers and others fundraising on 
behalf of Spraoi are trained in line with the 
guidelines. Controls are in place to ensure 
fundraising practices are in line with the 
guidelines. The Guidelines are reviewed 
annually. 

•  The Governance Code for the Community 
and Voluntary Sector has already been 
adopted and is in place in Spraoi ahead of 
the requirement by the Charity Regulator, 
who has requested that the standard be 
adopted in charities in 2021. The standards 
associated with the six principles of 
governance as laid out in the voluntary 
code have been met. The principles are:

 − Advancing Charitable Purpose

 − Behaving with Integrity

 − Leading People

 − Exercising Control

 − Working Effectively

 − Being Accountable and Transparent

•  In addition, Spraoi prepares an annual 
report and financial statements in full 
compliance with the Charities SORP 
(Statement of Reporting Practice under 
FRS102) and makes them available to the 
public on our website. 2020 is the first 
year we have prepared accounts in full 
compliance with SORP.
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Code of Conduct 
The Spraoi Board adheres to and has signed 
up to the Spraoi Board Members Code of 
Conduct, which underpins all our actions. The 
Code of Conduct is based on the following 
values: 

• Empathy 

• Including Everyone

• Making an Impact

• Community leads the way

• Ideas

• Sustainable

All new Directors are requested to read and 
sign the Board Members Code of Conduct as 
part of the induction process.

Political donations
The company made no political contributions 
or donations during the year.

Important events since the 
year-end 
We were delighted with the announcement 
in April 2021 of our successful application 
for funding in partnership with Donegal 
County Council to the Rural Regeneration 
Development Fund. Funding of €9.5 million 
has been granted for our Tús Nua project 
which will transform two derelict sites in the 
town into coworking space, a youth space 
for teenagers, creative makers hub, sensory 
garden and community kitchen. This project 
will commence in Q3 2021, with a completion 
date of Q3 2023.

We also welcomed the Connected Hub 
funding allocation of €75,000 which 
together with LEADER funding of €66,000 
will transform our coworking hub at Action 
Inishowen into modern state of the art 

office space. Renovation works are due to be 
completed by end of September 2021.

There has been a forecasted diminution in 
income and activities in some areas of our 
business and the impact of Covid-19 medium 
to long term is still unclear. However the 
Directors are satisfied that the activities of 
Spraoi can continue during 2021 and beyond.

Plans for Future Periods
The directors are not expecting to make 
any significant changes in the nature of 
the business in the near future. At the time 
of approving the financial statements, the 
company is exposed to the effects of the 
Covid-19 pandemic which has had a negative 
effect on Spraoi’s earned income. It is 
uncertain what the longer-term impact will 
be on the organisation. The Directors have 
carried out a detailed review of budgeted 
activities, both income and expenditure, into 
2021. By making reasonable assumptions, 
we believe the main activities of Spraoi can 
continue with modifications to ways of 
working, delivering services to members, and 
by amending income & expenditure targets & 
budgets.

The Board reviews progress against 
our strategy on an ongoing basis and a 
specific year-end review was carried out in 
November 2020. We believe that our strategy 
and the associated planned actions are still 
valid and relevant, and we will continue 
to review performance against strategic 
objectives in setting our plans and targets for 
2021.

We will continue to review plans for future 
periods.

By order of the board at its meeting held on 
the 6th September 2021.

Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the members of Spraoi agus Spórt Family Centre Company Limited 
By Guarantee

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Spraoi agus Spórt Family Centre Company 
Limited By Guarantee (the 'company') for the year ended 31 December 2020 which comprise 
the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of changes in equity, 
the statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. The relevant financial reporting framework that has been 
applied in their preparation is the Companies Act 2014 and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland issued in the United Kingdom by the 
Financial Reporting Council. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company as at 31 
December 2020 and of its surplus for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs 
(Ireland)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish 
Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and the provisions available for small 
entities, in the circumstances set out in note 23 to the financial statements, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on 
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of this report. 
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Other information 
The directors are responsible for the other information in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the 
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014 
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that in our opinion:

• the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements; and

• the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial 
statements to be readily and properly audited, and the financial statements are in agreement 
with the accounting records. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the directors’ 
report. 

We have nothing to report in respect of our obligation under the Companies Act 2014 to report 
to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by 
sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. 

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing 
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 
the IAASA’s website at: https://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/Auditing-standards/lnternational-
Standards-on-Auditing-for-use-in lre/lnternational-Standards-on-Auditing-(lreland)/ISA-700-
(lreland). This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities 
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 
391 of the Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to 
the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report 
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Philip McGonigle (Statutory Auditor) 
For and on behalf of McLaughlin McGonigle

Chartered Certified Accountants  
Statutory audit firm  St Helens  
 St Oran’s Road  
 Buncrana  
 Co. Donegal  
 Ireland

https://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/Auditing-standards/lnternational-Standards-on-Auditing-for-use-in%C2%ADlre/lnternational-Standards-on-Auditing-(lreland)/ISA-700-(lreland)
https://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/Auditing-standards/lnternational-Standards-on-Auditing-for-use-in%C2%ADlre/lnternational-Standards-on-Auditing-(lreland)/ISA-700-(lreland)
https://www.iaasa.ie/Publications/Auditing-standards/lnternational-Standards-on-Auditing-for-use-in%C2%ADlre/lnternational-Standards-on-Auditing-(lreland)/ISA-700-(lreland)
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Unrestricted 
Funds

Restricted 
Funds

Total Total 
as restated

Notes 2020 2020 2020 2019

€ € € €
Income from:
Donations and legacies 11,450 8,927 20,377 3,557

Charitable activities

 - Grants 5,300 136,801 142,101 125,070

 - Service Level Agreements 24,162 172,241 196,403 223,825

   - Other charitable activities 2,941 - 2,941 -

Fundraising activities 6,671 - 6,671 23,757

Other trading activities 90,928 - 90,928 150,600

Other income 345 - 345 491

Covid-19 supports 129,987 19,500 149,487 -

Capital grants - 106,017 106,017 30,720

Total Income 271,784 443,486 715,270 558,020 

Expenditure on: 5

Raising Funds - - - -

Charitable activities 178,907 348,653 527,560 533,298

Other - - - -

Total Expenditure 178,907 348,653 527,560 533,298 

Net Income 6 92,877 94,833 187,710 24,722 

Transfers between funds 16

 -  Restricted grants used to fund 
unrestricted assets 112,805 (112,805) - -

   -  Transfer to cover deficit in 
restricted funds (26,899) 26,899 - -

Other recognised gains/(losses) - - - -

Net movement in funds 178,783 8,927 187,710 24,722 

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 245,403 - 245,403 220,681 

Total Funds Carried Forward 424,186 8,927 433,113 245,403 

Statement of Financial Activities
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019 
as restated

€ € € €
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 285,906 175,073 

Current assets
Debtors 11 171,597 42,471
Cash at bank and in hand 135,375 116,815 

306,972 159,286 

Creditors: amounts falling due 
within one year 12 (159,765) (88,956) 

Net current assets  147,207 70,330

Total assets less current liabilities 433,113 245,403 

The funds of the charity 
Restricted income funds 16 8,927 -
Unrestricted funds 424,186 245,403

Members’ funds  433,113 245,403 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 31 December 2020 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to 
companies subject to the small companies regime and in accordance with Financial Reporting 
Statement 102 'The Financial Statement Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland'. 

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on the   
6th September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cliodhna Byrne 
Director 

Patricia Lee 
Director 



72

Connecting People Changing Lives

73

Celebrating 10 Years

Restricted Income and income 
expenditure funds Total

€ € €
As restated for the period ended 31 December 2019:

Balance at 1 January 2019 - 176,013 176,013 

Effect of change in accounting policy - 44,668 44,668 

As restated - 245,403 245,403

Year ended 31 December 2019: 
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 24,722 24,722 

Balance at 31 December 2019 - 245,403 245,403 

Year ended 31 December 2020: 
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 8,927 178,783 187,710 

Balance at 31 December 2020 8,927 424,186 433,113 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

Notes 2020 2019 
as restated

€ € € €
Cash flows from operating 
activities
Cash generated from operations 20 163,816 101,394 

Investing activities 
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (146,118) (39,633) 

Net cash used in investing 
activities (146,118) (39,633)

Net increase in cash and cash 
equivalents  17,698 61,761 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 116,815 55,054 

Cash and cash equivalents at end 
of year 

134,513 116,815 

Relating to: 
Cash at bank and in hand 135,375 116,815 
Bank overdrafts included in 
creditors payable within one year (862) -
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1 Accounting policies
 Company information 
 Spraoi agus Spórt Family Centre Company Limited By Guarantee is a limited company 

domiciled and incorporated in the Republic of Ireland. The registered office is Unit 7, Supervalu 
Shopping Centre, Newpark Road, Carndonagh, Co. Donegal, Ireland and its company 
registration number is 536437. 

1.1 Accounting convention
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial 

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2014. 

 The company has also applied the recommendations of the Statement of Recommended 
Practice (SORP) “Accounting and Reporting by Charities”, effective 1st January 2015, which is 
considered best practice for charities in Ireland. The directors consider that the adoption of the 
SORP requirements is the most appropriate accounting to properly reflect and disclose the 
activities of the organisation. 

 These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are the first financial 
statements of Spraoi agus Spórt Family Centre Company Limited By Guarantee prepared 
in accordance with the SORP. The date of transition to the SORP was 1st January 2019. An 
explanation of how transition to the SORP has affected the reported financial position and 
financial performance is given in note 24. 

 The financial statements are prepared in euros, which is the functional currency of the 
company. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest €. 

 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The 
principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2 Going concern
 At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation 

that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future. Thus the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
in preparing the financial statements.

1.3 Income and expenditure
 Incoming resources 
 All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (“SOFA”) when the company 

is entitled to the income, any performance related conditions have been met, receipt is 
probable and the amount can be quantified with reasonable accuracy. Income comprises 
grants for charitable activities, donations and legacies, fundraising activities and other trading 
activities. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

 Income is deferred where the company is limited by specific performance related conditions 
that are evident in the funding agreement, where there is a specification of a time period that 
limits the company’s ability to recognise the income until it has performed an activity and 
when there are specific terms or conditions within an agreement that have not been met and 
are not within the control of the company at year end. 

 Donated goods are recognised as income when sold. The value is derived from the resale 
value after deducting the cost to sell the goods. 

 Income is analysed as restricted or unrestricted. Restricted funds represent income recognised 
in the financial statements, which is subject to specific conditions imposed by the donors or 
grant making institutions. Unrestricted funds represent amounts which are expendable at the 
discretion of the company, in furtherance of the objectives of the charity. Such funds may be 
held in order to finance working capital or capital investment. 

 Resources expended 
 All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings 

that aggregate all costs related thereto. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to 
particular headings, they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use 
of the resources.

1.4 Tangible fixed assets
 Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or 

valuation, net of depreciation and any impairment losses. 

 Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual 
values over their useful lives on the following bases:

 Freehold land and buildings  4% Straight Line
 Leasehold improvements  Straight Line over the lease term
 Equipment  20% Straight Line
 Fixtures and fittings  20% Straight Line
 IT equipment  20% Straight Line

 The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between 
the sale proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to surplus or 
deficit.

1.5 Impairment of fixed assets
 At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its 

tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than 
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to 
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit, 
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is 
treated as a revaluation decrease. 

 Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss 
have ceased to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount 
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in 
surplus or deficit, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.6 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits 

held at call with banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current 
liabilities.

1.7 Financial instruments
 The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ 

and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

 Financial instruments are recognised in the company’s balance sheet when the company 
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial 
statements, when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

 Basic financial assets 
 Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially 

measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a 
financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future 
receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within 
one year are not amortised. 

 Classification of financial liabilities 
 Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the 

contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a 
residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

 Basic financial liabilities 
 Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies 

and preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price 
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is 
measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. 
Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised. 

 Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
method. 

 Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the 
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current 
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current 
liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.8 Taxation
 The company has obtained exemption from the Revenue Commissioners in respect of 

corporation tax, it being a company not carrying on a business for the purposes of making a 
profit.

1.9 Employee benefits
 The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless 

those costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets. 

 The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the 
employee’s services are received. 

 Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is 
demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide 
termination benefits.

1.10 Leases
 Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged 

to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where 
another more systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 
benefits from the leases asset are consumed.

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 
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1.11 Government grants
 Government grants are recognised at the fair value of the asset received or receivable when 

there is reasonable assurance that the grant conditions will be met and the grants will be 
received. 

 A grant that specifies performance conditions is recognised in income when the performance 
conditions are met. Where a grant does not specify performance conditions it is recognised in 
income when the proceeds are received or receivable. A grant received before the recognition 
criteria are satisfied is recognised as a liability.

1.12 Foreign exchange
 Transactions in currencies other than euros are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at 

the dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that 
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting 
end date. Gains and losses arising on translation in the period are included in profit or loss.

2 Change in accounting policy 
 In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been 

adopted by the company and have an effect on the current period or a prior period or may 
have an effect on future periods: 

 These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are the first financial 
statements of Spraoi agus Spórt Family Centre Company Limited By Guarantee prepared 
in accordance with the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP). The date of 
transition to the SORP was 1st January 2019. An explanation of how transition to the SORP has 
affected the reported financial position and financial performance is given in note 24. 

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 

 Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are as follows. 

 Estimated useful lives of tangible fixed assets 
 The annual depreciation charge depends primarily on the estimated useful lives of each 

type of asset. The directors regularly review these useful lives and change them if necessary 
to reflect current conditions. In determining these useful lives management consider 
technological change, patterns of consumption, physical condition and expected economic 
utilisation of the assets. Changes in the useful lives can have a significant impact on the 
depreciation charge for the financial year. There were no changes in the estimated useful 
lives of tangible fixed assets in 2020. 

4 Income 
 The total income of the company for the year has been derived from its activities wholly 

undertaken in the Republic of Ireland. Income comprises donations and legacies, grants and 
other income from charitable activities, fundraising activities and income from other trading 
activities. During the year the company also made use of available Covid-19 support grants.

5 Analysis of support costs

Young  
Families Children Young

People Adults Enterprise Total Basis of  
Allocation 

Support costs € € € € € € €

Rent 1,199 4,797 1,199 1,199 3,475 11,869 

Actual for  
Enterprise, 50%  
of remainder for 
Children and  
16.67% for each 
other activity 

Insurance 978 3,915 978 978 978 7,827 
50% for Children, 
12.5% for each 
other activity

Computer 
running costs 1,189 1,191 1,189 1,189 1,189 5,947 20% per activity 

Accountancy 753 755 753 753 753 3,767 20% per activity 

Audit fees 700 700 700 700 700 3,500 20% per activity

Bank charges 619 622 619 619 619 3,098 20% per activity 

Total Funds 
Carried Forward

5,438 11,980 5,438 5,438 7,714 36,008 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 
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2020 2019

€ €
Net income for the year is stated after charging: 

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets 35,285 27,830 

Operating lease charges - 409

7 Auditor’s remuneration
2020 2019

€ €
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and associates:

For audit services 
Audit of the financial statements of the company 3,500 3,960 

For other services 
All other non-audit services 3,767 500 

8 Employees 
The average monthly number of persons employed by the company during the year was:

2020 2019

Number Number

15 19

Their aggregate remuneration comprised: 

2020 2019

€ €

Wages and salaries 258,782  223,696 

Social security costs 23,339  22,486 

282,121 246,182 

Number of employees whose total employment benefits (excluding employer pension costs) for the period  
fall within each band of €10,000 from €60,000 upwards = 0 
Overall figure for total employer pension contributions = €nil

9 Taxation 
The company is registered with the Revenue Commissioners as a Charity under the reference number CHY 19609 
and on this basis, it is not subject to any tax on any surplus. The company is compliant with circular 44/2006 “Tax 
Clearance Procedures Grants, Subsidies and Similar Type Payments”.

6 Net income 10 Tangible fixed assets
Freehold land 
and buildings

Leasehold
improvements Equipment Fixtures and 

fittings
IT  

equipment Total 

€ € € € € €
Cost
At 1 January 2020 120,000 31,530 69,915 32,163 66,096 319,704 

Additions - 30,698 67,516 5,603 42,301 146,118

At 31 December 2020 120,000 62,228 137,431 37,766 108,397 465,822 

Depreciation and 
impairment 
At 1 January 2020 9,600 15,766 66,687 25,457 27,121 144,631 
Depreciation charged 
in the year 4,800 10,137 5,878 3,448 11,022 35,285 

At 31 December 2020 14,400 25,903 72,565 28,905 38,143 179,916 

Carrying amount 

At 31 December 2020 105,600 36,325 64,866 8,861 70,254 285,906 

At 31 December 2019 110,400 15,764 3,228 6,706 38,975 175,073 

11 Debtors

2020 2019 
Notes € €

Amounts owed to credit institutions 13 862  -

Trade creditors 15,373 8,981 

PAYE and social security 6,548 8,619

Other taxes 3,413  -

Deferred income 14 113,405 66,856 

Other creditors 3,570 -

Accruals 16,594 4,500  

159,765  88,956  

2020 2019 
€ €

Amounts falling due within one year: 
Amounts receivable 164,806  35,961 

Prepayments 6,791 6,510 

171,597 42,471 

12 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 
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2020 2019 
€ €

Bank overdrafts 862  -

Payable within one year 862  -

Opening  
deferred  
income 1  

January 2020

Grants  
recognised   
during the 

year

Amounts  
taken to  
income 

during the 
year

Closing  
deferred 

income 31 
December 

2020
€ € € €

Source 
Social Innovation Fund Ireland 35,576 25,000 (25,847) 34,729 

Community Foundation of Ireland 10,000 - (3,610) 6,390

Dormant Accounts Fund 19,558 30,000 (49,558) -

Department of Justice & Equality 1,472 - (1,472) -

Age & Opportunity 250 320 (250) 320 

LEADER - 116,702 (49,987) 66,715 

Donegal Sports Partnership - 600 - 600 

Healthy Ireland - 2,000 (800) 1,200

Foras na Gaeilge - 9,000 (5,550) 3,450 

66,856 183,622 (137,074) 113,405 

Deferred income comprises of grants received in advance in which terms and conditions have not yet been met.

14 Deferred grants 

13 Loans and overdrafts

15 Members’ liability 
The company is limited by guarantee, not having a share capital and consequently the liability of members is 
limited, subject to an undertaking by each member to contribute to the net assets or liabilities of the company on 
winding up such amounts as may be required not exceeding €1. 

Opening  
balance 1  

January 2020 
Incoming 
resources

Resources  
expended

Restricted 
grants used 

to fund 
unrestricted 
fixed assets

Transfer from 
unrestricted 
to restricted 

funds

Fund  
balances

carried 
forward 31 
December 

2020

Funds € € € € € €

Restricted - 443,486  (348,653)  (112,805) 26,899 8,927 

Unrestricted 245,403 271,784 (178,907) 112,805 (26,899) 424,186 

Total funds 245,403  715,270 (527,560)  - - 433,113 

16 Restricted income funds 

17 Operating lease commitments 
Lessee 
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for the business’ premises. A rental 
agreement is in place for the company’s main business premises until 31 December 2021. The company also has 
an ongoing casual lease agreement in place in respect of a small commercial unit that is used for a charity shop. 

18 Events after the reporting date 
Since the year-end the Covid-19 pandemic has continued to severely impact all aspects of the Irish economy. The 
measures taken to contain the spread of the virus have caused significant disruption to businesses and our way 
of life. Government and banks have responded with monetary and fiscal interventions in an effort to counter the 
economic impact. 

Whilst Covid-19 has had a profound and major impact on the company, it is not yet possible to estimate the 
duration and severity of that impact on the financial position and results of the company for future periods. 

The directors have determined that these events are non-adjusting subsequent events and, accordingly, the 
financial position as at, and the results for, the year ended 31st December 2020 have not been adjusted. 

19 Related party transactions 
None of the charity’s trustees received any remuneration or reimbursement of expenses for their work with the 
charity for 2020 (2019 - nil). 

There have been no related party transactions in the reporting period that require disclosure.

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 
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2020 2019
As restated

€ €

Surplus for the year after tax 187,710 24,722  

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets 35,285 27,830 

Movements in working capital: 
Increase in debtors (129,126) (16,646) 

lncrease/(decrease) in creditors 23,398 (1,369) 

Increase in deferred income 46,549 66,857 

Cash generated from operations 163,816 101,394

21 Analysis of changes in net funds 
1 January

2020
Cash  
flows

31 December 
2020

€ € €

Cash at bank and in hand 116,815 18,560  135,375 

Bank overdrafts - (862) (862) 

116,815 17,698 134,513 

Number of employees whose total employment benefits (excluding employer pension costs) for the period  
fall within each band of €10,000 from €60,000 upwards = 0 
Overall figure for total employer pension contributions = €nil

20 Cash generated from operations 

22 Details of grants received
The company is compliant with relevant Circulars, including Circular 44/2006, “Tax Clearance Procedures Grants, 
Subsidies and Similar Type Payments”.

1 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Pobal
Department of Rural and Community Development
Community Services Programme and Support Fund
To employ a Manager and 3 FTE’s.
€96,163
€0
€96,163
€96,163
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

2 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant

 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

3 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding

 Restriction on use

4 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
  
 Purpose of grant
 
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Donegal Education and Training Board
Department of Education
Community Education Support Programme
Funds received in relation to the provision of adult 
education courses
€2,153
€0
€2,153
€1,690
€463
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Sport Ireland
Sport Ireland
Age & Opportunity
Operation Transformation
€320
€250
€250
€320
€320
2020
€Nil

Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Pobal
Department of Children, Equality, Disability, 
Integration and Youth
Community Childcare Subvention Programme 
(CCSP)
To reduce childcare fees payable by qualifying 
parents of children attending the childcare service.
€78,123
€0
€78,123
€78,123
€0
2020
€Nil

Funding to be utilised as detailed above.
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5 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department

 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant

 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

6 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant

 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

7 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Pobal
Department of Children, Equality, Disability, 
Integration and Youth
National Childcare Scheme (NCS)
To reduce childcare fees payable by qualifying 
parents of children attending the childcare service.
€1,116
€0
€1,116
€1,116
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Pobal
Department of Rural and Community Development
Dormant Accounts Programme
To fund the purchase and installation of FabLab 
equipment.
€75,000
€19,558
€49,558
€0
€30,000
2020
€75,000
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Donegal County Council
Department of Housing, Local Government and 
Heritage
Development Fund Initiative
Costs associated with refurbishment and electrical 
costs and the purchase of furniture and flooring
€2,500
€0
€2,500
€2,500
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

8 Agency
 
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

9 Agency

 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

10 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Donegal Local Community Development 
Committee
Department of Rural & Community Development
LEADER
To upgrade the family centre facilities
€83,405
€0
€31,714
€0
€51,691
2020
€83,405
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Donegal Local Community Development 
Committee
Department of Rural & Community Development
LEADER
To upgrade the IT equipment
€33,297
€0
€18,273
€0
€15,024
2020
€33,297
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Department of Justice
Department of Justice
Communities Integration Fund
To purchase equipment for teenage youth space
€5,000
€1,472
€1,472
€0
€0
2020
€5,000
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.
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11 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

12 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

13 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department

 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Donegal County Council
Department of Health
Healthy Ireland Community Mental Health Fund
To pay costs associated with Developing Resilience 
Together programme
€2,000
€0
€800
€0
€1,200
2020-2021
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Western Development Commission
Department of Rural and Community Development
Atlantic Economic Corridor Enterprise Hubs Network
Assistance with reopening hubs
€5,000
€0
€5,000
€5,000
€0
2020
€5,000
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Foras na Gaeilge
Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, 
Sport and Media
Business Support Scheme
To assist with cost of providing bilingual material
€1,500
€0
€1,500
€1,500
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

14 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

15 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department

 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

16 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Foras na Gaeilge
Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, 
Sport and Media
Youth Events Scheme
To assist with the cost of Club Gaeilge programme
€5,000
€0
€1,550
€5,000
€3,450
2020-2021
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Foras na Gaeilge
Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, 
Sport and Media
Summer Camp Scheme
To assist with the cost of An Ghaeltacht Summer 
Camp
€2,500
€0
€2,500
€2,500
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Donegal Education and Training Board
Department of Children, Equality, Disability, 
Integration and Youth
Local Youth Club Grant Scheme (LYCGS)
€1,122
€0
€1,122
€1,122
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.
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17 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department

 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

18 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

19 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Donegal Education and Training Board
Department of Children, Equality, Disability, 
Integration and Youth
ICT Grant Scheme
To assist with the purchase of IT equipment
€400
€0
€400
€400
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Donegal County Council
Department of Rural and Community Development
PEACE IV
Building positive relations via FabLab programme
€80,000
€0
€32,950
€22,838
€10,112
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

HSE
Department of Health
Service Reform Fund
To fund a mainstream alternative respite 
programme for teenagers in the Inishowen area.
€45,348
€0
€45,348
€45,348
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

20 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant

 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

21 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

22 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Department of Education
Department of Education
July Provision
To provide summer education to children with 
complex special educational needs
€23,883
€0
€23,883
€23,883
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Donegal County Council
Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, 
Sport and Media
Creative Communities Jobs Stimulus Measure
To assist in hosting FabLab workshops
€7,000
€0
€7,000
€7,000
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Childcare Committee County Donegal
Department of Children, Equality, Disability, 
Integration and Youth
Parent & Toddler Initiative Grant
To assist with provision of services for parent and 
toddler group
€500
€0
€500
€500
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.
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23 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

24 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

25 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

North Inishowen School Completion Project
Department of Education
School Completion Project
To assist with provision of afterschool activities
€279
€0
€279
€279
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Pobal
Department of Rural and Community 
Development
Covid-19 Stability Scheme
To support the continued provision of services
€74,610
€0
€74,610
€74,610
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Donegal County Council
Department of Rural and Community 
Development
Covid-19 Emergency Fund
To support the continued provision of services
€2,000
€0
€2,000
€2,000
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

26 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 
 
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

27 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department

 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant

 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

28 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

Pobal
Department of Children, Equality, Disability, 
Integration and Youth
Covid-19 Reopening Support Payment
To assist in adhering to the reopening guidelines 
relating to supporting children to be kept within 
small groups in pods
€9,000
€0
€9,000
€9,000
€0
2020
€3,411
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Pobal
Department of Children, Equality, Disability, 
Integration and Youth
Covid-19 Capital Grant
To ensure compliance with Covid-19 Infection 
Prevention and Control Guidance for settings 
providing childcare
€8,500
€0
€8,500
€8,500
€0
2020
€8,500
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Community Foundation of Ireland
N/A
Environment and Nature Fund: Biodiversity grant
To carry out a community biodiversity action plan
€10,000
€10,000
€3,610
€0
€6,390
2020-2021
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.
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29 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

30 Agency
 Sponsoring Government Department
 Grant Programme
 Purpose of grant
  
 

 Total Grant Awarded
 - Funding carried forward from prior year
 - Grant taken to income in the year
 - Grant received in the year
 - Grants deferred or due at year end
 Term
 Capital Funding
 Restriction on use

CoLabora CoWork Plus
Department of Rural and Community Development
LEADER
To develop a CoWorking hub
€5,610
€0
€5,610
€5,610
€0
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

Social Innovation Fund Ireland
Department of Rural and Community Development
Dormant Accounts Fund
To deliver the core strategic aims of the business - to 
establish a youth space for teenagers, a FabLab, 
a Co-Working Hub and to bring services to other 
towns.
€80,000
€35,576
€25,847
€25,000
€34,729
2020
€Nil
Funding to be utilised as detailed above.

23 Non-audit services provided by auditor
In common with many businesses of our size and nature we use our auditor to prepare and submit returns to 
the Companies Registration Office and assist with the preparation of the financial statements.

As previously 
reported

Adjustment As restated at 
31 Dec 2019

€ € €
Creditors due within one year
Deferred income (62,365) (4,491) (66,856)

Creditors due after one year
Deferred income (42,700) 42,700 - 

Net assets 207,194 38,209 245,403

Capital and reserves
Own shares reserve 30,164 (30,164) -

Profit and loss 177,030 68,373 245,403

Total equity 207,194 38,209 245,403 

Changes to the Statement of financial activity

As previously Adjustment As restated

€ € €
Period ended 31 December 2019
Capital grants/Other operating income 7,015 23,705 30,720

Net income 1,017 23,705 24,722 

Reconciliation of changes in equity

1 January 31 December

2019 2019
€ €

Adjustments to prior year
Recognise grants on performance basis - 38,209

Equity as previously reported 206,177 207,194

Equity as adjusted 206,177 245,403 

24 Prior period adjustment
Changes to the Statement of financial position
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Reconciliation of changes in surplus for the previous financial period

2019
€

Adjustments to prior year
Recognise grants on performance basis 23,705

Surplus as previously reported 1,017

Surplus as adjusted 24,722 

Notes to reconciliation
The changes to the prior period results, set out above, were necessary due to the company’s adoption of the 
Charities SORP (FRS 102). The changes consist of the recognition on a performance basis of deferred government 
grants which had previously been recognised on an accruals basis over the life of the capital items acquired.

25 Approval of financial statements
The directors approved the financial statements on the 6th September 2021. 

Schedule Of Administrative Expenses 
For the year ended 31 December 2020 

2020 2019

€ €

Administrative expenses
Wages and salaries 258,782 223,696
Employer’s PRSI contributions 23,339 22,486
Staff training 918 1,011

Rent 11,869 10,221
Rates 313 352
Cleaning 8,401 -

Power, light and heat 8,763 11,387
Repairs and maintenance 31,882 25,836
Insurance 7,827 8,789

Computer running costs 5,947 3,916
Leasing - 409
Travelling expenses 3,107 7,568

Professional subscriptions 1,759 778
Legal and professional fees 6,001 16,862
Accountancy 3,767 500

Audit fees 3,500 3,960
Bank charges 3,098 395
Printing and stationery 3,604 3,661

Advertising 11,229 7,442
Telephone 2,908 2,739
Sundry expenses 1,460 1,459

Depreciation 35,285 27,830

Cash generated from operations 433,759 381,297
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